RESOLUTION NO. 2000-100

A RESOLUTION OF NASSAU COUNTY, FLORIDA APPROVING THE FORM OF A FIRST AMENDED AND RESTATED INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT THAT ADMITS THE COUNTY AS A MEMBER OF THE FLORIDA GOVERNMENTAL UTILITY AUTHORITY; APPROVING THE FORM OF AN INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY AND THE FLORIDA GOVERNMENTAL UTILITY AUTHORITY AUTHORIZING THE AUTHORITY TO ACT ON THE COUNTY'S BEHALF IN THE ACQUISITION OF CERTAIN PRIVATELY OWNED UTILITY FACILITIES; AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF THE INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF NASSAU COUNTY, FLORIDA AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. AUTHORITY FOR THE RESOLUTION. This Resolution is adopted pursuant to the provisions of section 125.01 and Part I of Chapter 163, Florida Statutes.

SECTION 2. FINDINGS. Nassau County, Florida (the "County"), does hereby find and determine that:

(A) Brevard County, Florida, Lee County, Florida, Polk County, Florida and Sarasota County, Florida entered into that certain Interlocal Agreement dated as of February 1, 1999, as subsequently amended and restated (the "Agreement"), pursuant to which the Florida Governmental Utility Authority (the "Authority") was created to acquire, operate, construct, and manage water and/or wastewater utility facilities within Florida.

(B) Brevard County has subsequently withdrawn as a member of the Authority.

(C) The County desires to become a member of the Authority.

(D) In order to properly document the admission of the County to membership in the Authority it is necessary and desirable for the County to authorize, execute and deliver the Agreement.

(E) To maximize the use of County resources and staff, it is in the best interest of the County to authorize the Authority to act on its behalf in investigations of the feasibility of the public acquisition of privately owned utilities providing essential utility services within Nassau County

SECTION 3. APPROVAL OF AGREEMENT. The form, terms and provisions of the Agreement, submitted to this meeting and attached hereto as Exhibit A, be and the same hereby are approved. The Chairman of the Board of County Commissioners of the County and Clerk of the County are hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver said Agreement in the name and on behalf of the County, with such changes, amendments, modifications, omissions and additions as approved by the Chairman. Execution by said Chairman shall be deemed to be conclusive evidence of approval of such changes, amendments, modifications, omissions and additions.

SECTION 4. THE APPROVAL OF THE INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT RELATING TO ACQUISITIONS. The form, terms and provisions of the Interlocal Agreement, submitted to this meeting, attached hereto as Exhibit B is intended to set the terms and conditions for the Authority to act on behalf of the County in the acquisition of certain privately owned utility facilities upon the County becoming a Member of the Authority. The form, terms and provisions of the Interlocal Agreement are hereby approved and the Chairman of the Board of County Commissioners of the County and Clerk of the County are hereby authorized to execute and deliver said Interlocal Agreement in its name on behalf of the County.

SECTION 5. FILING OF AGREEMENT AND INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT. The County Clerk is hereby directed to file the Agreement and Interlocal Agreement with the Clerk of the Circuit Court of the County and the Clerk of the Circuit Court in Leon County, Florida as required by section 163.01(11), Florida Statutes.

SECTION 6. GENERAL AUTHORITY. The members of the County Commission and the officers, attorneys and other agents or employees of the County are hereby authorized to do all acts and things required of them by this Resolution, the Agreement and Interlocal Agreement, or desirable or consistent with the requirements hereof or thereof for the full, punctual and complete performance of all the terms, covenants and agreements contained herein or in the Agreement and Interlocal Agreement, and each member, employee, attorney and officer of the County and the County Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver any and all papers and instruments and to do and cause to be done any and all acts and things necessary or proper for carrying out the transactions contemplated hereunder and under the Agreement and Interlocal Agreement.

SECTION 7. SEVERABILITY AND INVALID PROVISIONS. If any one or more of the covenants, agreements or provisions herein contained shall be held contrary to any express provision of law or contrary to the policy of express law, though not expressly prohibited or against public policy, or shall for any reason whatsoever be held invalid, then such covenants, agreements or provisions shall be null and void and shall be deemed separable from the remaining covenants, agreements or provisions and shall in no way affect the validity of any of the other provisions hereof or of the Agreement and Interlocal Agreement.

SECTION 8. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

NASSAU COUNTY, FLORIDA

Nick D. Deonas, Chairman

ATTEST: "Chip' Øxlev

Approved as to form by the Nassau County Attorney:

Michael

EXHIBIT A

- - Y

Arrest at the

-05

고 김 그의 프로그 프로그

AGREEMENT

Doc# 200035683 Book: 962 Pages: 977 - 1015 Filed & Recorded 12/18/2000 12:14:36 PM J. M. OXLEY JR CLERK OF CIRCUIT COURT NASSAU COUNTY, FLORIDA RECORDING \$ 157.00 TRUST FUND \$ 20.00

FIRST AMENDED AND RESTATED INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT RELATING TO ESTABLISHMENT OF THE FLORIDA GOVERNMENTAL UTILITY AUTHORITY

Leciri.vu

Among

.....

Citrus County, Florida Nassau County, Florida Polk County, Florida Sarasota County, Florida

Dated as of December 1, 2000

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page

ARTICLE I

DEFINITIONS

ARTICLE II

THE AUTHORITY

SECTION 2.01.	CREATION	8
SECTION 2.02.	PURPOSES	8
SECTION 2.03.	AUTHORITY MEMBERS.	9
SECTION 2.04.	DURATION OF AUTHORITY.	9
SECTION 2.05.	TRANSFER OF UTILITY SYSTEMS TO OTHER AUTHORITIES	9

ARTICLE III

MEMBERSHIP AND REPRESENTATION

SECTION 3.01.	MEMBERSHIP10
SECTION 3.02.	REPRESENTATION
SECTION 3.03.	ACTION
SECTION 3.04.	ELECTION OF OFFICERS 11
SECTION 3.05.	AUTHORITY OF OFFICERS 12
SECTION 3.06.	RESIGNATION 12
SECTION 3.07.	POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE BOARD 12
SECTION 3.08.	MEETINGS
SECTION 3.09.	WITHDRAWAL OR DISMISSAL OF AUTHORITY MEMBERS 13
SECTION 3.10.	EXPENSES14
SECTION 3.11.	LIABILITY

ARTICLE IV

POWERS AND DUTIES

SECTION 4.01.	POWERS	
SECTION 4.02.	ACQUISITION OF UTILITY SYSTEMS BY AUTHORITY	
	MEMBERS	

i

41 - 241 - 241

SECTION 4.03.	ANNUAL BUDGET
SECTION 4.04.	ADOPTION OF RATES, FEES OR OTHER CHARGES
SECTION 4.05.	OBLIGATIONS
SECTION 4.06.	AD VALOREM TAXATION NOT AUTHORIZED
SECTION 4.07.	CONNECTION FEES
SECTION 4.08.	UNPAID FEES
SECTION 4.09.	AUTHORITY APPROVAL OF CONSTRUCTION OF WATER AND
	WASTEWATER FACILITIES
SECTION 4.10.	PLANNING REQUIREMENT
SECTION 4.11.	EFFECT OF INCORPORATION OR THE PRESENCE OF A
	SPECIAL DISTRICT ON AUTHORITY
SECTION 4.12.	CONDUIT TRANSACTIONS
SECTION 4.13.	WATER PRODUCTION FACILITIES LOCATED WITHIN THE
	JURISDICTION OF TAMPA BAY WATER
SECTION 4.14.	OMITTED
SECTION 4.15.	PROVISIONS RELATING TO CITRUS COUNTY, FLORIDA 29
SECTION 4.16.	PROVISIONS RELATING TO POLK COUNTY, FLORIDA 29
SECTION 4.17.	PROVISIONS RELATING TO SARASOTA COUNTY, FLORIDA29

ARTICLE V

MISCELLANEOUS

SECTION 5.01.	DELEGATION OF DUTY
SECTION 5.02.	FILING
SECTION 5.03.	IMMUNITY
SECTION 5.04.	LIMITED LIABILITY
SECTION 5.05.	AMENDMENTS
SECTION 5.06.	SEVERABILITY
SECTION 5.07.	CONTROLLING LAW
SECTION 5.08.	SUPERCEDES ORIGINAL AGREEMENT
SECTION 5.09.	EFFECTIVE DATE

FIRST AMENDED AND RESTATED INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT RELATING TO ESTABLISHMENT OF THE FLORIDA GOVERNMENTAL UTILITY AUTHORITY

THIS FIRST AMENDED AND RESTATED INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT,

dated as of December 1, 2000 (the "Interlocal Agreement"), entered into among a certain number of local governmental units executing this Interlocal Agreement, each one constituting either a county or municipal corporation located in the State of Florida, and constituting a "public agency" under Part I of Chapter 163, Florida Statutes, which shall on the date hereof be Citrus County, Florida, Nassau County, Florida, Polk County, Florida and Sarasota County, Florida (collectively, the "Authority Members"), as evidenced by the signatures of their authorized representatives hereby amends and restates in its entirety that certain Interlocal Agreement, dated as of February 1, 1999, among certain of the Authority Members (the "Original Agreement");

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Original Agreement certain of the Authority Members created the Authority for the purposes provided therein; and

WHEREAS, the Authority has determined to amend the Original Agreement in certain respects and to expand the membership in the Authority to include Nassau County, Florida and Citrus County, Florida; and

WHEREAS, it is necessary and desirable to amend and restate in its entirety the Original Agreement in order to amend the Original Agreement and to expand the Authority;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein, the Original Agreement is hereby amended and restated in its entirety to read as follows:

WHEREAS, each of the Authority Members have the power to acquire, own, improve, operate and maintain water and wastewater utility facilities pursuant to their Florida Constitutional powers of local self government, Section 125.01, Florida Statutes (in the case of counties), or Section 166.021, Florida Statutes (in the case of municipal corporations); and

WHEREAS, Part I of Chapter 163, Florida Statutes (the "Interlocal Act"), permits the Authority Members, as public agencies under the Interlocal Act, to enter into interlocal agreements with each other to jointly exercise any power, privilege or authority which such Authority Members share in common and which each might exercise separately, permitting the Authority Members to make the most efficient use of their powers by enabling them to cooperate on a basis of mutual benefit and thereby provide services and facilities in a manner and pursuant to forms of governmental organization that will best serve geographic, economic, population and other factors influencing the needs and development of such Authority Members; and

WHEREAS, Section 163.01(7)(g), Florida Statutes, authorizes the Authority Members pursuant to an interlocal agreement to create a separate legal entity to exercise the common power of the Authority Members to acquire, own, improve, operate and maintain water and wastewater utility facilities; and

WHEREAS, the Authority Members have determined that it is in their best interests to create such a legal entity to acquire, own, improve, operate and maintain water and wastewater utilities, initially consisting of certain utility facilities owned and/or controlled by Avatar Holdings, Inc., and its subsidiaries (collectively, "Avatar"), for the following reasons:

(1) Avatar has heretofore determined and made known that it will not entertain any offer to purchase its utility assets on a piecemeal basis. It will sell all of its utility assets or none of them. From the public perspective, the most cost effective manner of acquiring such assets is through a legal entity created pursuant to the Interlocal Act. The acquisition of the assets by said legal entity will be at a purchase price which will enable the Authority to charge the then existing rates, fees and charges paid by the customers of Avatar so that those rates, fees and charges will not be increased solely as a direct result of the acquisition by the Authority of such utility assets. In addition, the level and standard of services provided by the Authority to such customers will be maintained or improved.

(2) All Authority Members must meet the comprehensive planning requirements of Chapter 163, Florida Statutes, which mandate that Florida local governments, including the Authority Members, coordinate their plans for future growth with available sources of funding and the availability of infrastructure. The provision of water and wastewater utilities is a major factor in such infrastructure coordination. Public ownership of water and wastewater utility facilities is more desirable and more readily allows for Florida local governments to meet their statutory mandate with respect to the utilities element of their respective comprehensive plans.

(3) The establishment of such legal entity, in the form of the hereinafter described Authority, will ensure that the customers of the water and wastewater facilities owned by the Authority are provided the best, most cost effective service and assure that proper future

expansion of the water and wastewater facilities will occur to meet the demands of development of each affected local government.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the covenants herein, it is mutually agreed and understood by and among the Authority Members, that now or may hereafter execute this Interlocal Agreement, that the "Florida Governmental Utility Authority," a legal entity and public body and a unit of local government with all of the privileges, benefits, powers and terms of the hereinafter defined Act and this Interlocal Agreement, is hereby created for the purposes described herein, as follows:

÷

ARTICLE I

DEFINITIONS

SECTION 1.01. DEFINITIONS. The following definitions shall govern the interpretation of this Interlocal Agreement:

"Act" shall mean, collectively, Section 125.01, Florida Statutes (in the case of counties), Section 166.021, Florida Statutes (in the case of municipal corporations), the Interlocal Act, any Charters of Authority Members, and other applicable provisions of law.

"Assessable Improvements" shall mean improvements to the Authority Facilities of a local nature and of special benefit to the premises or lands served thereby.

"Authority" shall mean the Florida Governmental Utility Authority, a legal entity and public body created pursuant to the provisions of this Interlocal Agreement and the Act.

"Authority Facilities" shall mean the Authority's water production, transmission, treatment and distribution facilities and property, and the Authority's wastewater treatment, collection and disposal facilities and property, including reuse and reclaimed water facilities, as they may be modified, improved or expanded from time to time, which are owned, leased, operated, managed and/or used, from time to time, by the Authority to provide public water and wastewater services. The Authority Facilities shall include all Utility Systems. Authority Facilities shall include all property, real or personal, tangible or intangible, now or hereafter owned, leased, operated or managed by the Authority in connection with the provision of public water and wastewater services.

"Authority Member" or "Authority Members" shall mean the member or members of the Authority, from time to time, as shall be provided for by this Interlocal Agreement. The Authority Members shall on the date hereof be Citrus County, Florida, Nassau County, Florida, Polk County, Florida and Sarasota County, Florida.

"Avatar" shall mean Avatar Holdings, Inc., its subsidiaries and affiliate entities, and any successors or assigns thereto.

"Avatar Facilities" shall mean the water and wastewater facilities, property and assets owned by Avatar which shall be acquired by the Authority.

"Board" shall mean the governing board of the Authority, consisting of the Directors appointed hereunder.

"Connection Fees " shall mean fees and charges imposed by the Authority to acquire, construct, equip or expand the capacity of the Authority Facilities for the purpose of paying or reimbursing the equitable share of the capital cost relating to such acquisition, construction, expansion or equipping of capacity of the Authority Facilities or expansion thereof in order to serve new users of the facilities of the Authority Facilities. Such Connection Fees may include interest carrying costs associated with the Authority Facilities.

"Cost" when used in connection with a Project, shall mean (1) the Authority's cost of construction; (2) costs of acquisition by or for the Authority of such Project; (3) costs of land and interests thereon and the cost of the Authority incidental to such acquisition; (4) the cost of any indemnity and/or surety bonds and premiums for insurance during construction; (5) all interest due to be paid on the Obligations relating to the Project during the period of acquisition and construction of such Project and for a reasonable period subsequent to completion of acquisition and construction as the Board may determine by resolution; (6) engineering, legal and other consulting fees and expenses; (7) costs and expenses of the financing incurred for such Project, including audits, fees and expenses of any paying agent, registrar, trustee, consultants, attorneys, engineers, credit enhancers or depository; (8) payments, when due (whether at the maturity of principal or the due date of interest or upon redemption) on any interim or temporary indebtedness incurred for such Project; (9) costs of machinery, equipment, supplies and spare parts required by the Authority for the commencement of operation of such Project or continuation of operation of such Project; and (10) any other costs properly attributable to such Project or to the issuance of Obligations which finance such Project, as determined by generally accepted accounting principles applicable to such Project, and shall include reimbursement to the Authority for any such items of cost paid by the Authority prior to issuance of the Obligations issued to finance such Project. Additional items of cost may be provided pursuant to the Financing Documents.

"Director" shall mean that individual appointed in accordance with the provisions hereof to serve as part of the Board. "Director" shall also include an alternate who is appointed to fill such role by an Authority Member.

"Equivalent Residential Connection" shall mean the standard water and wastewater unit used to calculate demand upon either water or wastewater system capacity, based respectively upon usage of 350 gallons per day of water treatment capacity and 275

gallons per day of wastewater disposal capacity or such other daily usage standard applicable to a Utility System as determined by resolution of the Board.

"Financing Documents" shall mean the resolution or resolutions duly adopted by the Authority, as well as any indenture of trust, trust agreement or other instrument relating to the issuance or security of the Obligations.

"Fiscal Year" shall mean the period commencing on October 1 of each year and continuing through the next succeeding September 30, or such other period as may be determined by the Board.

"General Manager" shall mean the individual or entity selected and employed by the Board to serve the Authority in such capacity.

"Interlocal Act" shall mean Part I of Chapter 163, Florida Statutes.

"Interlocal Agreement" shall mean this Interlocal Agreement, including any amendments or supplements hereto, executed and delivered in accordance with the terms hereof.

"**Obligations**" shall mean a series of bonds or other evidence of indebtedness, including, but not limited to, notes, commercial paper, capital leases or any other obligations of the Authority issued hereunder and pursuant to the Financing Documents.

"Pledged Funds" shall mean (1) the revenues, fees, charges, special assessments and other moneys received by the Authority or its designee relating to its ownership or operation of the Authority Facilities, or some portion thereof, (2) until applied in accordance with the terms of the Financing Documents, all moneys in the funds, accounts and subaccounts established thereby, including investments therein, and (3) such other property, assets and moneys of the Authority as shall be pledged pursuant to the Financing Documents; in each case to the extent provided by the Board pursuant to the Financing Documents. The Pledged Funds pledged to one series of Obligations may be different than the Pledged Funds pledged to other series of Obligations.

"**Project**" shall mean any structure, property or facility which the Authority, from time to time, may determine to construct or acquire as part of its Authority Facilities, together with all improvements, equipment, structures and other facilities necessary or appropriate in connection therewith. This term is to be broadly construed so as to include any lawful undertaking which will accrue to the benefit of the Authority Facilities, including joint ventures and acquisitions of partial interests or contractual rights. "Project" shall

include, but not be limited to, acquisition of the Avatar Facilities, and the construction of any improvements thereto. "Project" may also include working capital, as well as any costs or judgments associated with litigation.

"Public Agencies" shall mean any "public agency", as defined in the Interlocal Act.

"Service Area" shall mean the geographic boundaries within which each Utility System provides or is otherwise authorized to provide water and/or wastewater services.

"State" shall mean the State of Florida.

"Utility Acquisition Agreement" shall mean an agreement between the Authority and an Authority Member, other Public Agency or entity, if applicable, relating to the disposition of a Utility System, or portion thereof, which is located within the jurisdiction of such Authority Member or Public Agency.

"Utility System" shall mean the Authority Facilities comprising a separate water and/or wastewater system, which shall be accounted for separately from any other Authority Facilities. A Utility System may consist of utility facilities which are located in more than one Public Agency and which may or may not be contiguous with each other. Each Utility System shall be designated as such by the Board.

Whenever any words are used in this Interlocal Agreement in the masculine gender, they shall be construed as though they were also used in the feminine or neuter gender in all situations where they would so apply, and whenever any words are used in this Interlocal Agreement in the singular form, they shall be construed as though they were also used in the plural form in all situations where they would so apply.

ARTICLE II

THE AUTHORITY

SECTION 2.01. CREATION. The Authority Members hereby create and establish the "Florida Governmental Utility Authority", a legal entity and public body and a unit of local government, with all of the privileges, benefits, powers and terms provided for herein and by the Act.

SECTION 2.02. PURPOSES. (A) The purpose of this Interlocal Agreement is for the establishment of the Authority in order to: (i) acquire water and/or wastewater utility facilities and systems throughout the State of Florida, including, but not limited to, the Avatar Facilities and to make improvements to such facilities and systems which are acquired by the Authority; (ii) acquire, construct, own, improve, operate, manage and/or maintain the Authority Facilities; (iii) provide the most economic and efficient water and wastewater utility services throughout the Service Area of each Utility System in a non-discriminatory manner; (iv) make provision for rates whereby rates from one Utility System will not subsidize improvements, operation and maintenance costs or other expenses of another Utility System; and (v) dispose, from time to time, of such portions of the Authority Facilities to Authority Members, other Public Agencies or entities as it deems appropriate in accordance with the terms hereof, the Financing Documents and the terms of any Utility Acquisition Agreements.

(B) The Authority Members do hereby consent and agree to the acquisition of the Avatar Facilities within their respective jurisdictions by the Authority and consent to the Authority acquiring, owning, improving, operating and maintaining the Avatar Facilities within their respective jurisdictions in accordance with the terms of this Interlocal Agreement, sound engineering practices and applicable law.

(C) The creation and organization of the Authority and the fulfillment of its objectives serves a public purpose, and is in all respects for the benefit of the people of this State, affected Public Agencies and their constituents, and the persons or entities served by the Authority Facilities. The Authority is performing an essential governmental function. All property of the Authority is and shall in all respects be considered to be public property, and the title to such property shall be held by the Authority for the benefit of the public. The use of such property shall be considered to serve a public purpose, until disposed of upon such terms as the Authority may deem appropriate. Insofar as provided for by law, all Obligations and interest or income thereon and all the property, facilities, services, activities and revenues of the Authority are declared to be nontaxable for any and all purposes by the

State or federal government or any unit of the State or federal government to the same extent as if owned or issued by or on behalf of the Authority Members or a Public Agency.

SECTION 2.03. AUTHORITY MEMBERS. The Authority Members shall consist of those Public Agencies as provided in Article III hereof.

SECTION 2.04. DURATION OF AUTHORITY. The Authority shall exist so long as any portion of the Authority Facilities is owned, operated, leased or managed by the Authority or the Authority has Obligations outstanding. At such time as the Authority no longer owns, operates, leases or manages any portion of the Authority Facilities and no Obligations are outstanding, the Authority may dissolve by majority vote of the Board. In the event of dissolution, any assets of the Authority shall be allocated among the Authority Members based upon the number of Equivalent Residential Connections of each Authority Member at the time of such termination.

SECTION 2.05. TRANSFER OF UTILITY SYSTEMS TO OTHER AUTHORITIES. The Authority may transfer Utility System(s) and any Obligations relating thereto to another governmental utility authority upon satisfaction of the following conditions:

(A) Such governmental utility authority has been duly created pursuant to Section 163.01(7)(g), Florida Statutes, with substantially the same powers provided herein and such authority assumes all responsibilities and liabilities in regard to such transfer.

(B) Such transfer is approved by two-thirds (2/3) of the Directors, which includes the Authority Member Director where such Utility System is located.

(C) Such transfer shall be approved by the governing body of any Authority Member in whose jurisdiction the Utility System is located.

(D) The Authority receives an opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel to the effect that the transfer of such Utility System and Obligations will not adversely affect the tax-exempt status of such Obligations.

ARTICLE III

MEMBERSHIP AND REPRESENTATION

SECTION 3.01. MEMBERSHIP. (A) Membership in the Authority shall consist of those Public Agencies selected pursuant to this Article III.

(B) The Authority Members shall on the date hereof consist of: Citrus County, Florida, Nassau County, Florida, Polk County, Florida and Sarasota County, Florida.

(C) To the extent permitted by the Interlocal Act, the Authority may admit any Public Agency to membership upon application of such Public Agency and the affirmative vote of the majority plus one of all Directors at a duly called meeting of the Authority. This Interlocal Agreement need not be amended in order to admit any Public Agency as an Authority Member. Approval of the governing bodies of the Authority Members shall not be required to admit a new Authority Member.

(D) As a precondition to membership in the Authority, each Authority Member shall constitute a Florida municipality, county or such other Public Agency which is permitted by the Interlocal Act to be a member of the Authority. Such new Authority Member shall execute, deliver and record a duly authorized counterpart to this Interlocal Agreement. Authority Members may be admitted regardless of whether any Authority Facilities are located within the jurisdiction of such Authority Member.

SECTION 3.02. REPRESENTATION. (A) Each Authority Member shall appoint one Director to act on its behalf on the Board. Each Director shall be an individual who shall be appointed specifically by name or by position. In addition, each Authority Member may appoint an alternate Director to serve in the absence or unavailability of the Director.

(B) In the event the Director of an Authority Member shall resign or be removed, such Authority Member shall appoint a new Director within thirty (30) calendar days. In the event such Authority Member does not appoint a new Director within thirty (30) calendar days of resignation or removal and such Authority Member has appointed an alternate Director, such alternate Director shall serve in the capacity as Director. In the event such Authority Member does not appoint a new Director within thirty (30) calendar days of resignation or removal and such Authority Member has not appointed an alternate Director, the Board may appoint such Director who shall serve until such time as such affected Authority Member shall appoint a new Director; provided any new Director appointed by

the Board shall be a resident of such Authority Member. Any Director who is absent for three (3) consecutive meetings of the Board shall be deemed to have resigned.

(C) Each Authority Member, in its sole discretion, may remove its Director at any time and may appoint a new Director to serve on the Board upon notice being given to the Authority as provided by Section 3.06(A) hereof for resignation of a Director.

(D) No Director may be an elected official of an Authority Member. Directors may be employees of an Authority Member.

(E) Any Director may be removed upon the affirmative vote of at least two-thirds (2/3) of all Directors at a duly called meeting of the Authority.

SECTION 3.03. ACTION. (A) The affairs, actions and duties of the Authority shall be undertaken at a duly called meeting pursuant to Section 3.08 hereof.

(B) At any meeting of the Authority at which any official action is to be taken, a majority of all Directors shall constitute a quorum. A majority vote of a quorum of the Directors present at a duly called meeting shall constitute an act of the Authority, except as otherwise provided herein.

(C) Any action taken by the Board authorizing the acquisition, lease or sale of a Utility System or portion thereof in the jurisdiction of an Authority Member shall require the affirmative vote of the Director representing such Authority Member. Any swap, hedge or other similar arrangement relating to Obligations described in Section 4.05(M) hereof shall require the affirmative vote of the Director of any Authority Member where a Utility System or portion thereof, the revenues of which are pledged to the payment of such Obligations, is located.

(D) A certificate, resolution or instrument signed by the Chairman, Vice-Chairman or such other person of the Authority as may be hereafter designated and authorized by the Board shall be evidence of the action of the Authority and any such certificate, resolution or other instrument so signed shall conclusively be presumed to be authentic. Likewise, all facts and matters stated therein shall conclusively be presumed to be accurate and true.

SECTION 3.04. ELECTION OF OFFICERS. Once a year, and at such other time as may be necessary to fill a vacancy, at a duly called meeting of the Board called for the purpose thereof, the Authority through its Directors shall elect a Chairman, a Vice-Chairman and Secretary-Treasurer to conduct the meetings of the Authority and to perform such other functions as herein provided. At the discretion of the Board, the General

Manager (or representative thereof) may be appointed as the Secretary-Treasurer. Said Chairman, Vice-Chairman and Secretary-Treasurer shall serve one (1) year terms unless they resign from the Authority or such officer is replaced by the Board.

SECTION 3.05. AUTHORITY OF OFFICERS. (A) The Chairman and the Vice-Chairman shall take such actions, have all such powers and sign all documents on behalf of the Authority and in furtherance of the purposes of this Interlocal Agreement as may be approved by resolution of the Board adopted at a duly called meeting.

(B) The Secretary-Treasurer, or his designee, shall keep minutes of all meetings, proceedings and acts of the Board, but such minutes need not be verbatim. Copies of all minutes of the meetings of the Authority shall be sent by the Secretary-Treasurer or his designee to all Directors to the Authority. The Secretary-Treasurer may also attest to the execution of documents. The Secretary-Treasurer shall have such other powers as may be approved by resolution of the Board adopted at a duly called meeting.

SECTION 3.06. RESIGNATION. (A) Any Director may resign from all duties or responsibilities hereunder by giving at least thirty (30) calendar days prior written notice sent by registered mail to the General Manager. Such notice shall state the date said resignation shall take effect and such resignation shall take effect on that date.

(B) Any resigning Director who is an officer of the Authority shall immediately turn over and deliver to the General Manager any and all records, books, documents or other property in his possession or under his control which belong to the Authority.

SECTION 3.07. POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE BOARD. The Board shall act as the governing board of the Authority and shall have, in addition to all other powers and duties described herein, the following powers and duties:

(A) To fix the time and place or places at which its regular meetings shall be held, and to call and hold special meetings.

(B) To make and pass rules, regulations, resolutions and orders not inconsistent with the Constitution of the United States or of the State, or to the provisions of the Interlocal Act or this Interlocal Agreement, necessary for the governance and management of the affairs of the Authority, for the execution of the powers, obligations and responsibilities vested in the Authority, and for carrying into effect the provisions of this Interlocal Agreement. (C) To fix the location of the principal place of business of the Authority and the location of all offices maintained thereunder.

(D) To create any and all necessary offices in addition to Chairman, Vice-Chairman and Secretary-Treasurer; to establish the powers, duties and compensation of all employees; and to require and fix the amount of all official bonds necessary for the protection of the funds and property of the Authority.

(E) To select and employ a General Manager, who shall administer the affairs and manage the staff of the Authority with Board approval, and perform all other administrative duties as directed by the Board.

(F) To employ or hire such attorneys or firm(s) of attorneys as it deems appropriate to provide legal advice and/or other legal services to the Authority.

(G) To amend the Authority's name, as permitted by law.

SECTION 3.08. MEETINGS. (A) The Board shall convene at a meeting duly called by either a majority of the Directors or the Chairman. The Directors may establish regular meeting times and places. Meetings shall be conducted at such locations as may be determined by the majority of the Directors or the Chairman. Notice of a special meeting, unless otherwise waived, shall be furnished to each Director by the General Manager not less than seven (7) calendar days prior to the date of such meeting; provided the Chairman or, in his absence or unavailability, the Vice-Chairman, may call a meeting upon twenty-four (24) hours written notice, if such officer determines an emergency exists. All meetings shall be noticed in accordance with applicable law.

(B) Within thirty (30) calendar days of the creation of the Authority, the duly appointed Directors shall hold an organizational meeting to elect officers and perform such other duties as are provided for under this Interlocal Agreement.

SECTION 3.09. WITHDRAWAL OR DISMISSAL OF AUTHORITY MEMBERS. (A) Any Authority Member may withdraw from the Authority at any time, if the following conditions are satisfied: (i) there shall be at least two (2) Authority Members remaining in the Authority subsequent to withdrawal, and (ii) a certified resolution from the Authority Member's governing body setting forth its intent to withdraw is presented to the Authority. Upon satisfaction of the foregoing conditions, such withdrawal shall be effective.

(B) In the event the Authority does not own, operate, lease or manage a Utility System, or portion thereof, within the jurisdiction of an Authority Member, such Authority Member may be dismissed from the Authority by majority vote of all Directors unless subsequent to dismissal there shall be less than two (2) Authority Members remaining in the Authority.

SECTION 3.10. EXPENSES. The Authority may establish, from time to time, procedures for reimbursement for reasonable expenses incurred by Authority Members, Directors and employees of the Authority.

SECTION 3.11. LIABILITY. No Director, agent, officer, official or employee of the Authority shall be liable for any action taken pursuant to this Interlocal Agreement in good faith or for any omission, except gross negligence, or for any act of omission or commission by any other Director, agent, officer, official or employee of the Authority.

ARTICLE IV

POWERS AND DUTIES

SECTION 4.01. POWERS. (A) The Authority shall have all powers to carry out the purposes of this Interlocal Agreement, including the following powers which shall be in addition to and supplementing any other privileges, benefits and powers granted by the Act:

(i) To acquire, construct, own, lease, operate, manage, maintain, dispose of, improve and expand the Authority Facilities, and to have the exclusive control and jurisdiction thereof.

(ii) To the extent permitted by law, to provide for mandatory water and wastewater connections of potential customers located in a Service Area upon availability of service by the Authority.

(iii) To fix, levy and collect rates, fees and other charges (including Connection Fees) from persons or property, or both, for the use of the services, facilities and product of the Authority Facilities or to pay the operating or financing costs of the Authority Facilities available to potential users; to fix and collect charges for making connections with the Authority Facilities and, to the extent provided by law, to provide for reasonable penalties to be imposed on any users or property for any such rates, fees or charges that are delinquent, all as more specifically described in Section 4.04 hereof.

(iv) To contract for the service of engineers, accountants, attorneys and other experts or consultants, and such other agents and employees as the Board may require or deem appropriate from time to time.

(v) To acquire such lands and rights and interests therein, including lands under water and riparian rights and to acquire such personal property as the Authority may deem necessary and appropriate in connection with the acquisition, ownership, expansion, improvement, operation and maintenance of the Authority Facilities and to hold and dispose of all real and personal property under its control. To the extent the power of eminent domain is available to the Authority in accordance with applicable law, in particular the Interlocal Act, such power may be exercised by the Authority both within and outside the Service Areas of the Authority Facilities for the purpose of carrying out the intent of this Interlocal Agreement. (vi) To exercise exclusive jurisdiction, control and supervision over the Authority Facilities and to make and enforce such rules and regulations for the maintenance, management and operation of the Authority Facilities as may be, in the judgment of the Board, necessary or desirable for the efficient operation of the Authority Facilities in accomplishing the purposes of this Interlocal Agreement.

(vii) To enter into other interlocal agreements or join with any other special purpose or general purpose local governments, public agencies or authorities in the exercise of common powers or to assist the Authority in acquiring land and rights or interests therein.

(viii) To contract with private or public entities or persons to provide, treat or receive water or to provide or receive wastewater disposal, collection or treatment. To contract with any private or public entity or person for the operation or management of the Authority Facilities.

(ix) To prescribe methods of pretreatment of industrial wastes not amenable to treatment with domestic wastewater before accepting such wastes for treatment and to refuse to accept such industrial wastes when not sufficiently pretreated as may be prescribed, and, to the extent permitted by law, to prescribe penalties for the refusal of any person or corporation to so pretreat such industrial wastes.

(x) To the extent provided by law, to require and enforce the use of services, products and facilities of the Authority whenever and wherever they are accessible, and to require and enforce the installation and dedication to the Authority of water and wastewater facilities or easements as a condition precedent to the provision of service by the Authority or by another entity authorized by the Authority to provide interim service until Authority services, products and facilities are available.

(xi) To sell or otherwise dispose of the effluent, sludge or other byproducts as a result of wastewater treatment.

(xii) To accomplish construction directly or by letting construction contracts to other entities, whether public or private, for all or any part of the construction of improvements to the Authority Facilities as determined by the Board in accordance with applicable law. (xiii) To construct, maintain and operate connecting, intercepting, or outlet wastewater and wastewater mains and pipes and water mains, conduits or pipelines in, along or under any streets, alleys, highways or other public places or ways regulated by or under the jurisdiction of the State or any political subdivision or municipal corporation when necessary or convenient for the purposes of the Authority.

(xiv) Subject to such provisions and restrictions as may be set forth in any Financing Document, to enter into contracts with the government of the United States or any agency or instrumentality thereof, the State, or with any municipality, county, district, authority, political subdivision, private corporation, partnership, association or individual providing for or relating to the treatment, collection and disposal of wastewater, or the treatment, supply and distribution of water and any other matters relevant thereto or otherwise necessary to effect the purposes of this Interlocal Agreement. To receive and accept from any federal or State agency, grants or loans for or in aid of the planning, construction, reconstruction or financing of improvements, additions or extensions to the Authority Facilities and to receive and accept aid or contributions or loans from any other source of either money, labor or other things of value, to be held, used and applied only for the purpose for which such grants, contributions or loans may be made.

(xv) To assume the ownership, lease, operation, management and/or control of any publicly or privately owned water and wastewater facilities, including the assumption of the financial liabilities associated with such water and wastewater facilities.

(xvi) To divide the Authority Facilities into separate units, benefit areas, subsystems or subdistricts, including Utility Systems, for imposing special assessments, setting rates, accounting or financing improvements or additions, or any other purpose.

(xvii) To appoint advisory boards and committees to assist the Board in the exercise and performance of the powers and duties provided in this Interlocal Agreement.

(xviii) To sue and be sued in the name of the Authority.

(xix) To adopt and use a seal and authorize the use of a facsimile thereof.

(xx) To contract with any public or private entity or person to manage and operate the Authority Facilities, or any portion thereof, upon such terms as the Board deems appropriate.

(xxi) Subject to such provisions and restrictions as may be set forth herein and in any Financing Document, to sell or otherwise dispose of the Authority Facilities, or any portion thereof, upon such terms as the Board deems appropriate. To enter into Utility Acquisition Agreements to effect such dispositions.

(xxii) To acquire, by purchase, gift, devise or otherwise, and to dispose of, real or personal property, or any estate therein.

(xxiii) To make and execute contracts or other instruments necessary or convenient to the exercise of its powers.

(xxiv) To provide such retirement benefits and program as the Board deems appropriate.

(xxv) To maintain an office or offices at such place or places as the Board may designate from time to time.

(xxvi) To hold, control and acquire by donation or purchase, or dispose of, any public easements, dedications to public use, platted reservations for public purposes, or any reservations for those purposes authorized by this Interlocal Agreement and to make use of such easements, dedications and reservations for any of the purposes authorized by this Interlocal Agreement.

(xxvii) To lease, as lessor or lessee, to or from any person, firm, corporation, association or body, public or private, facilities or property of any nature to carry out any of the purposes authorized by this Interlocal Agreement.

(xxviii) To borrow money and issue bonds, certificates, warrants, notes, obligations or other evidence of indebtedness.

(xxix) To assess, levy, impose, collect and enforce special assessments to provide Assessable Improvements upon all or any portion of the lands located within a Service Area. Such special assessments may be apportioned among benefitted property in a manner proportionate with the benefits received or commensurate with the burdens alleviated by the maintenance and use of property based upon such factors or combination of factors as determined by resolution of the Board. Such special assessments may, in the discretion of the Board, be imposed, collected and enforced using any methods and procedures authorized by law, including Section 197.3632, Florida Statutes; or the Board may adopt by resolution its own method or procedures or use any other method or means for levy, imposition, collection and enforcement not inconsistent with law.

(xxx) To apply for and accept grants, loans and subsidies from any governmental entity for the acquisition, construction, operation and maintenance of the Authority Facilities, and to comply with all requirements and conditions imposed in connection therewith.

(xxxi) To the extent allowed by law and to the extent required to effectuate the purposes hereof, to exercise all privileges, immunities and exemptions accorded municipalities and counties of the State under the provisions of the constitution and laws of the State.

(xxxii) To invest its moneys in such investments as directed by the Board in accordance with State law and which shall be consistent in all instances with the applicable provisions of the Financing Documents.

(xxxiii) To purchase such insurance as it deems appropriate.

(xxxiv) To do all acts and to exercise all of the powers necessary, convenient, incidental, implied or proper in connection with any of the powers, duties or purposes authorized by this Interlocal Agreement or the Act.

(B) In exercising the powers conferred by this Interlocal Agreement the Board shall act by resolution or motion made and adopted at duly noticed and publicly held meetings in conformance with applicable law.

(C) The provisions of Chapter 120, Florida Statutes, shall not apply to the Authority.

SECTION 4.02. ACQUISITION OF UTILITY SYSTEMS BY AUTHORITY MEMBERS. (A) To the extent not inconsistent with the applicable Financing Documents, each Authority Member in whose jurisdiction the Authority owns a Utility System, or portion thereof, shall have the exclusive right to acquire such Utility System, or portion thereof. The terms of such acquisition and purchase price thereof shall be established pursuant to the Financing Document relating thereto or the Utility Acquisition Agreement between the Authority and the respective Authority Member. (B) The Authority agrees that each Authority Member shall have the exclusive right to acquire any Utility System, or portion thereof, located within the jurisdiction of such Authority Member in the event the Authority, in its sole discretion, determines to sell such Utility System, or portion thereof, and the Authority and Authority Member have not entered into a Utility Acquisition Agreement in regard to such Utility System. The purchase price for such Utility System, or portion thereof, shall be consistent with the applicable Financing Documents and shall be an amount mutually agreed upon by the Authority and the Authority Member.

SECTION 4.03. ANNUAL BUDGET. (A) Prior to October 1 of each year the Board will adopt an annual budget for the Authority and for each Utility System. Such budget shall be prepared within the time periods required for the adoption of a tentative and final budget for county governments under general law. The annual budget shall contain an estimate of receipts by source and an itemized estimation of expenditures anticipated to be incurred to meet the financial needs and obligations of the Authority and each Utility System. The General Manager shall prepare the annual budget. The annual budget shall contain a five-year capital improvement plan for each Utility System.

(B) The Board shall publish a notice of the meeting in which the annual budget is to be adopted, which notice shall be published once a week for two (2) consecutive weeks thirty (30) days prior to the date of the hearing in a newspaper qualified to accept legal advertisement within each county in the jurisdiction of the Authority in which a Utility System is located. A copy of the proposed budget indicating the five-year capital plan for each Utility System and a notice of the time and place of the Board meeting at which the annual budget is to be adopted shall be provided to each Authority Member prior to the first publication date.

(C) The adopted budget shall be the operating and fiscal guide for the Authority for the ensuing Fiscal Year. The Board may from time to time amend the budget at any duly called regular or special meeting.

(D) The Authority shall provide financial reports in such form and in such manner as prescribed pursuant to this Interlocal Agreement and Chapter 218, Florida Statutes.

(E) The Board shall cause to be made at least once a year, within one hundred eighty (180) days of the end of the Fiscal Year, a report of the Authority Facilities, including all matters relating to expansions, acquisitions, rates, revenues, expenses, principal and interest requirements of the Obligations and the status of all funds and accounts. Copies of such report shall be filed with the Secretary-Treasurer and shall be open to public inspection. The report shall be known as the "Annual Authority Facilities Report". The Annual

Authority Facilities Report may be included as a part of any other report or reports required by law or may be issued separately. The Secretary-Treasurer shall provide each Authority Member with a copy of the Annual Authority Facilities Report.

SECTION 4.04. ADOPTION OF RATES, FEES OR OTHER CHARGES. (A) The Board shall adopt by resolution a schedule of rates, fees or other charges for the use of the services, facilities and products of each Utility System comprising a portion of the Authority Facilities to be paid by each customer which may be connected with or provided service by such Authority Facilities. The Authority may establish separate rates, fees and charges for different portions of the Authority Facilities, including separate rates, fees and charges for each Utility System. The Board may establish different rates, fees and charges for services, facilities and products provided by a portion of a Utility System provided such rates, fees and charges are consistent with applicable law. Each Utility System shall be maintained as an independent enterprise fund.

Such rates, fees and charges shall be adopted and revised so as to provide (B) moneys, which, with other funds available for such purposes, shall be at least sufficient at all times to pay the expenses of operating, managing, expanding, improving and maintaining the Authority Facilities, including renewal and replacement reserves for such Authority Facilities, to pay costs and expenses provided herein and the Financing Documents, and to pay the principal and interest on the Obligations as the same shall become due and reserves therefore, and to provide a reasonable margin of safety over and above the total amount of such payments. Notwithstanding any other provision in this Interlocal Agreement, such rates, fees and charges should always be sufficient to comply fully with any covenants contained in the Financing Documents. The Authority shall charge and collect such rates, fees and charges so adopted and revised, and such rates, fees and charges shall not be subject to the supervision or regulation by any other commission, board, bureau, agency or other political subdivision of the State. The Authority may enter into an interlocal agreement with an Authority Member which delegates to such Authority Member in whole or in part the power to approve the rates, fees and charges of the Utility System located within the jurisdiction of such Authority Member. In exercising such delegated power of approval of the rates, fees and charges of any such Utility System, the rates, fees and charges established by the Authority Member shall be consistent with the requirements contained in this Section 4.04 and shall be sufficient to comply fully with all covenants contained in the applicable Financing Documents.

(C) Such rates, fees and charges for each Utility System or portion thereof shall be just and equitable and uniform for the users in the same class and may be based upon or computed upon any factor or combination of factors affecting the use of the services, products or facilities furnished to the customers of such Utility System or portion thereof,

as may be determined by the Board from time to time. Except as described in Sections 4.04(F) and (G) hereof, no rates, fees or charges shall be fixed, adopted or revised under the foregoing provisions of this Section 4.04 until after a duly noticed public hearing at which all of the customers of the Authority Facilities affected thereby, or owners, tenants or occupants served or to be served thereby and all other interested persons shall have an opportunity to be heard concerning the proposed rates, fees or charges. Notice of such public hearing setting forth the proposed schedule or schedules of rates, fees or charges shall be given by one publication in a newspaper circulating in the portion of the Service Area or Areas affected by such proposed rates, fees or charges at least twenty (20) days before the date fixed in such notice for the public hearing, which may be adjourned from time to time. After such hearing, the proposed schedule or schedules, either as initially adopted, or as modified or amended, may be finally adopted.

(D) The rates, fees or charges adopted for any class of customers served shall be extended to cover any additional customers thereafter served which shall fall within the same class, without the necessity of any further hearing or notice.

(E) The Board may appoint the General Manager, a Director, committee of Directors, and/or a special master to conduct the public hearing or hearings on its behalf relating to rates, fees and charges. The General Manager, Director, committee of Directors and/or designated special master shall act as hearing officers and report to the Board its findings relating to such public hearing. Except as provided pursuant to a delegation in an interlocal agreement with an Authority Member, only the Board may set or revise rates, fees and charges.

(F) Notwithstanding the provision of Section 4.04(C) hereof, upon acquisition of a Utility System, no public hearing shall be required for adoption by the Authority by resolution of the rates, fees and charges contained in the rate tariff relating thereto approved by the Florida Public Service Commission, any governmental seller thereof or any county which has exercised its right to regulate such rates for such Utility System. Likewise, the Board shall have the authority to adopt by resolution approved rate tariffs of other acquired Utility Systems in the future without the requirement of such a public hearing.

(G) Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 4.04(C) hereof, no public hearing shall be required for adoption by the Board of a periodic automatic indexing factor applicable to the initial or any revised schedule of rates, fees and charges of any Utility System.

(H) Notwithstanding anything in this Interlocal Agreement to the contrary, the Authority, by unanimous vote of its Directors, may establish an administrative account into

which moneys may be deposited from the rates, fees and charges of the Authority Facilities or portion thereof or from such other source deemed appropriate by the Board. Any moneys deposited to such administrative account from rates, fees and charges of Authority Facilities shall be considered a loan from such Authority Facilities and shall be repaid within a reasonable period of time to the extent moneys are available therefor. Moneys in such administrative account may be used to pay for costs and expenses associated with acquiring Authority Facilities and any other lawful purpose approved by the Board.

SECTION 4.05. OBLIGATIONS. (A) The Board shall have the power and it is hereby authorized to provide pursuant to the Financing Documents, at one time or from time to time in series, for the issuance of Obligations of the Authority, or notes in anticipation thereof, for one or more of the following purposes:

- (i) Paying all or part of the Cost of one or more Projects,
- (ii) Refunding any bonds or other indebtedness of the Authority,
- (iii) Assuming or repaying the indebtedness relating to Authority Facilities, acquired or leased by the Authority from a public or private entity,
- (iv) Setting aside moneys in a renewal or replacement account,
- (v) Funding a debt service reserve account,
- (vi) Capitalizing interest on the Obligations,
- (vii) Paying costs of issuance relating to the Obligations, and
- (viii) Any other purpose relating to this Interlocal Agreement.

The principal of and the interest on each series of Obligations shall be payable from the Pledged Funds, all as determined pursuant to the Financing Documents. The Authority may grant a lien upon and pledge the Pledged Funds in favor of the holders of each series of Obligations in the manner and to the extent provided in the Financing Documents. Such Pledged Funds shall immediately be subject to such lien without any physical delivery thereof and such lien shall be valid and binding as against all parties having claims of any kind in tort, contract or otherwise against the Authority.

The Obligations of each series shall be dated, shall bear interest and such rate (B) or rates, shall mature at such time or times not exceeding forty (40) years from their date or dates, may be made redeemable before maturity, at the option of the Authority, at such price or prices and under such terms and conditions, all as shall be determined by the Board pursuant to the Financing Documents. The Board shall determine the form of the Obligations, the manner of executing such Obligations, and shall fix the denomination of such Obligations and the place of payment of the principal and interest, which may be at any bank or trust company within or without the State. In case any officer whose signature or a facsimile of whose signature shall appear on any Obligations shall cease to be such officer before the delivery of such Obligations, such signature or such facsimile shall nevertheless be valid and sufficient for all purposes the same as if he or she had remained in office until delivery. The Board may sell Obligations in such manner and for such price as it may determine to be in the best interest of the Authority in accordance with the terms of the Financing Documents. In addition to the Pledged Funds, the Obligations may be secured by such credit enhancement as the Board determines to be appropriate pursuant to the Financing Documents. The Obligations may be issued as capital appreciation bonds, current interest bonds, term bonds, serial bonds, variable bonds or any combination thereof, all as shall be determined pursuant to the Financing Documents.

(C) Prior to the preparation of definitive Obligations of any series, the Board may issue interim receipts, interim certificates or temporary Obligations, exchangeable for definitive Obligations when such Obligations have been executed and are available for delivery. The Board may also provide for the replacement of any Obligation which shall become mutilated, or be destroyed or lost. Obligations may be issued without any other proceedings or the happening of any other conditions or things than those proceedings, conditions or things which are specifically required by this Interlocal Agreement, the Financing Documents or other applicable laws.

(D) The proceeds of any series of Obligations shall be used for such purposes, and shall be disbursed in such manner and under such restrictions, if any, as the Board may provide pursuant to the Financing Documents.

(E) The Financing Documents may also contain such limitations upon the issuance of additional Obligations as the Board may deem appropriate, and such additional Obligations shall be issued under such restrictions and limitations as may be prescribed by such Financing Documents. The Financing Documents may contain such provisions and terms in relation to the Obligations and the Pledged Funds as the Board deems appropriate and which shall not be inconsistent herewith. (F) Obligations shall not be deemed to constitute a general obligation debt of the Authority or the Authority Members or a pledge of the faith and credit of the Authority or any of the Authority Members, but such Obligations shall be payable solely from the Pledged Funds and any moneys received from the credit enhancers of the Obligations, in accordance with the terms of the Financing Documents. The issuance of Obligations shall not directly or indirectly or contingently obligate the Authority or any of the Authority Members to levy or to pledge any form of ad valorem taxation whatsoever therefor. No holder of any such Obligations shall ever have the right to compel any exercise of the ad valorem taxing power on the part of any of the Authority Members to pay any such Obligations or the interest thereon or the right to enforce payment of such Obligations, or the interest thereon, against any property of the Authority or any of the Authority Members, nor shall such Obligations constitute a charge, lien or encumbrance, legal or equitable, upon any property of the Authority or any of the Financing Documents.

(G) All Pledged Funds shall be deemed to be trust funds, to be held and applied solely as provided in the Financing Documents. Such Pledged Funds may be invested by the Authority in such manner as provided in the Financing Documents.

(H) Any holder of Obligations, except to the extent the rights herein given may be restricted by the Financing Documents, may, either at law or in equity, by suit, action, mandamus or other proceeding, protect and enforce any and all rights under the laws of the State or granted hereunder or under the Financing Documents, and may enforce and compel the performance of all agreements or covenants required by this Interlocal Agreement, or by such Financing Documents, to be performed by the Authority or by any officer thereof.

(I) The Obligations may be validated, at the sole discretion of the Board, pursuant to Chapter 75, Florida Statutes. Obligations may be issued pursuant to and secured by a resolution of the Board.

(J) In addition to the other provisions and requirements of this Interlocal Agreement, any Financing Documents may contain such provisions as the Board deems appropriate.

(K) All Obligations issued hereunder shall not be invalid for any irregularity or defect in the proceedings for the issuance and sale thereof and shall be incontestable in the hands of bona fide purchasers for value. No proceedings in respect to the issuance of such Obligations shall be necessary except such as are required by this Interlocal Agreement, the Financing Documents and general law. The provisions of the Financing Documents shall

Book 962 Page 1005

constitute an irrevocable contract between the Authority and the holders of the Obligations issued pursuant to the provisions thereof.

(L) Holders of Obligations shall be considered third party beneficiaries hereunder and may enforce the provisions hereof.

(M) The Board may enter into such swap, hedge or other similar arrangements relating to any Obligations as it deems appropriate.

SECTION 4.06. AD VALOREM TAXATION NOT AUTHORIZED. The Authority shall not have the power to levy and assess an ad valorem tax on any property within the Service Areas for any reason.

SECTION 4.07. CONNECTION FEES. (A) The Authority is empowered to levy and collect Connection Fees relating to the Authority Facilities for capital improvements and debt service on such capital improvements under such conditions as shall be prescribed by the Board. Connection Fees may become Pledged Funds in accordance with the terms of the Financing Documents.

(B) The Board may change or revise the schedule of Connection Fees upon compliance with the notice and hearing requirements set forth for the adoption of rates, fees and other charges.

SECTION 4.08. UNPAID FEES. The Board shall have the power, under such reasonable procedures as the Board may adopt from time to time, to discontinue and shut off either or both water and wastewater services until delinquent fees, rates or charges, including interest and charges for the discontinuance and the cost of restoration of such water and wastewater services, or both, are fully paid; and, for such purposes, the Authority may enter onto any lands, waters or premises of any person, firm, corporation or body, public or private, served by the Authority within the Service Areas.

SECTION 4.09. AUTHORITY APPROVAL OF CONSTRUCTION OF WATER AND WASTEWATER FACILITIES. (A) The Board may adopt all necessary regulations by resolution that provide design and construction specifications and procedures for the dedication of facilities to the Authority.

(B) The Authority may require, as a condition precedent to the approval of any connection to the Authority Facilities, (i) that all subdivision-type infrastructure, or other contributed transmission or distribution infrastructure necessary to serve a particular project or customer, and necessary easements be dedicated to the Authority, (ii) that the developer

make available interim treatment facilities or services or contract for same on an interim basis from an authorized service provider, and (iii) that the developer, or the person or entity the developer has contracted with, provide interim treatment service, or lease back for nominal consideration and maintain such dedicated or contributed facilities until such time as the Authority provides services; provided in each case the foregoing actions shall be consistent with applicable regulations of the Authority Members.

SECTION 4.10. PLANNING REQUIREMENT. (A) In addition to the other powers enumerated in this Interlocal Agreement the Authority shall have the power to adopt a master plan for the provision of utility services within the Service Area of each Utility System. Such master plan may include for each Utility System, at a minimum: the identification of current customers and the projections of future customers and their profiles (residential, commercial, industrial); a review and general inventory of all existing infrastructure and facilities within the Service Area of each Utility System; and an identification of water supply and treatment alternatives and available wastewater treatment and disposal alternatives, including plans for the use of reclaimed or reused water alternatives.

(B) Prior to the adoption of the annual budget, a five-year capital improvement plan shall be submitted to each Authority Member for the Utility System within their respective jurisdictions for a determination by such Authority Member that the capital improvement plan is consistent with the applicable local government comprehensive plan of such Authority Member adopted pursuant to Chapter 163, Part II, Florida Statutes.

(C) All utility expansion or line extension policies adopted by the Board shall be consistent with the land development regulations, local comprehensive plans and other applicable regulations adopted by the Authority Members within which a Utility System is located.

SECTION 4.11. EFFECT OF INCORPORATION OR THE PRESENCE OF A SPECIAL DISTRICT ON AUTHORITY. The subsequent incorporation or annexation of any area initially included within a Service Area, or the presence or creation of any special district within a Service Area, shall not impair nor alter the authority, power and purposes of the Authority for providing water and wastewater services and facilities within any portion of such Service Area now included within any municipality, special district or subsequently included within any municipality or special district.

SECTION 4.12. CONDUIT TRANSACTIONS. In addition to the powers granted to the Authority hereunder, including the power to issue Obligations pursuant to this Article IV, the Authority may issue Obligations, to the extent permitted by law, for the

principal purpose of loaning the proceeds thereof to a public or private entity, which shall finance or refinance the acquisition and construction of water treatment, production or transmission facilities or wastewater treatment, transmission or disposal facilities. Such Obligations shall be secured in such manner as determined by the Board. Such security may include moneys received pursuant to a loan agreement between the Authority and such public or private entity. Such Obligations shall have the terms provided in Section 4.05 hereof.

SECTION 4.13. WATER PRODUCTION FACILITIES LOCATED WITHIN THE JURISDICTION OF TAMPA BAY WATER. In order to comply with Section 3.02(B) of the Amended and Restated Interlocal Agreement reorganizing Tampa Bay Water, a Regional Water Supply Authority ("Tampa Bay Water"), the Authority agrees to use Tampa Bay Water (directly or through a member government of Tampa Bay Water) as its exclusive supplier of water to be delivered to customers located within the geographic territory of Tampa Bay Water, to the same extent as required by the member governments of Tampa Bay Water (other than Tampa) under such Amended and Restated Interlocal Agreement. In order to comply with this provision as it relates to the proposed acquisition of the water facilities of Avatar and other water facilities located in Hillsborough County, Florida, Pasco County, Florida and Pinellas County, Florida (the "Tampa Bay Water Service Area"), the Authority shall offer to sell, lease or otherwise dispose of the water production facilities of Avatar and any other water production facilities which it acquires within the Tampa Bay Water Service Area to Tampa Bay Water at or prior to the time of acquisition of such facilities by the Authority, at a cost equal to the average of two independent MAI appraisals of such water production facilities, one of which shall be by an appraiser selected by Tampa Bay Water. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Interlocal Agreement, and solely for purposes of enforcing the provisions of this Section 4.13, the Authority Members agree that Tampa Bay Water is hereby designated as a third-party beneficiary hereto. The provisions of this Section 4.13 shall control over any other provisions of this Interlocal Agreement which may be in conflict herewith. Notwithstanding any provisions in this Section 4.13 to the contrary, the Authority need not offer to sell, lease or otherwise dispose of the water production facilities of Avatar which are acquired by the Authority and it may own and operate such facilities, provided Hillsborough County is not an Authority Member.

SECTION 4.14. OMITTED.

SECTION 4.15. PROVISIONS RELATING TO CITRUS COUNTY, FLORIDA. The following provisions of this Section 4.15 shall relate solely to Citrus County:

None

SECTION 4.16. PROVISIONS RELATING TO POLK COUNTY, FLORIDA. The following provisions of this Section 4.16 shall relate solely to Polk County:

(A) Service Area. The Service Area of the Utility System relating to the facilities acquired from Avatar which are located in Polk County shall be the existing Service Area. The Authority may not serve areas outside such Service Area located in Polk County without the prior written consent of Polk County. The decision to grant, grant with conditions or deny a request to serve an area outside such initial Service Area shall be treated as a legislative decision of the Polk County Board of County Commissioners. The Authority shall not compete against the Polk County water and wastewater system. Solely for purposes of Section 11.14 of the Polk County water and wastewater bond resolution, Polk County acknowledges that the Authority shall have a franchise to operate within such Service Area located in Polk County under the conditions provided herein, such franchise shall not exceed in any respect any franchise heretofore approved by Polk County. This provision may not be modified without the consent of Polk County.

SECTION 4.17. PROVISIONS RELATING TO SARASOTA COUNTY, FLORIDA. The following provisions of this Section 4.17 shall relate solely to Sarasota County:

(A) Service Area. The Service Area of the Utility System relating to the facilities acquired from Avatar which are located in Sarasota County (the "Avatar Utility System") shall be the existing area franchised to Avatar by Sarasota County. The Authority may not serve areas outside such Service Area without the prior written consent of Sarasota County. The decision to grant, grant with conditions or deny a request to serve an area outside the initial Service Area shall be treated as a legislative decision of the Sarasota County Board of County Commissioners.

(B) Cooperation. The Authority agrees to cooperate with Sarasota County for the purpose of interconnecting the Avatar Utility System with the water and wastewater utility system owned and operated by Sarasota County. The Authority and Sarasota County agree that, to the extent practicable, either party may obtain bulk service for treatment of wastewater from the other party at a reasonable cost based upon usage to the extent

wastewater capacity for such bulk service is available. The cost of any interconnections by the Authority and Sarasota County shall be borne by the parties based on an agreed to usage of the interconnection. The Authority agrees to enter into an agreement with Sarasota County whereby treated effluent from the Avatar Utility System will be made available for distribution through Sarasota County's Regional Reclaimed Water Distribution System. There shall be no charge for effluent which is transferred to the County's Regional Reclaimed Water Distribution System.

(C) Capital Improvement Plan. Prior to the adoption of its annual budget, the Authority shall prepare a five-year capital improvement plan as described in Section 4.10(B) hereof. Such plan shall be consistent with Sarasota County Utility Master Plans, as amended from time to time. The proposed capital improvement plan shall be submitted to Sarasota County no less than thirty (30) days prior to its adoption. Sarasota County shall review and comment on the appropriateness of the proposed capital improvement plan within twenty (20) days following receipt of same. The Authority agrees to cooperate with Sarasota County in adjusting its capital improvement plan, if necessary, to be consistent with Sarasota County's Utility Master Plans.

(D) Rates, Fees and Charges. Sarasota County shall have the power to approve rates, fees and charges of the Avatar Utility System, to the extent allowed under Section 4.04(B) hereof. Sarasota County agrees that it shall have no power to approve rates, fees and charges in the event the Authority establishes such rates, fees and charges in order to comply with the covenants contained in the Financing Documents. Sarasota County shall apply its ordinances and rules and regulations which pertain to water and sewer franchise utilities in determining rates, fees and charges for the Avatar Utility System. Sarasota County recognizes that certain rate making principles, such as contributed property and return on investment concepts, are not applicable to the Authority. Sarasota County and the Authority agree to enter into a separate interlocal agreement with respect to the process to be followed in applying for approval of rates, fees and charges of the Avatar Utility System.

(E) Acquisition. Notwithstanding anything in Section 4.02 hereof, Sarasota County has an existing right to acquire the Avatar Utility System as provided in the Indenture of Trust relating thereto.

ARTICLE V

MISCELLANEOUS

SECTION 5.01. DELEGATION OF DUTY. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to authorize the delegation of any of the constitutional or statutory duties of the State or the Authority Members or any officers thereof.

SECTION 5.02. FILING. A copy of this Interlocal Agreement shall be filed for record with the Clerk of the Circuit Court in each county wherein an Authority Member is located.

SECTION 5.03. IMMUNITY. (A) All of the privileges and immunities from liability and exemptions from laws, ordinances and rules which apply to the activity of officials, officers, agents or employees of the Authority Members shall apply to the officials, officers, agents or employees of the Authority when performing their respective functions and duties under the provisions of this Interlocal Agreement.

(B) The Authority Members intend to utilize Sections 768.28 and 163.01(9)(c), Florida Statutes, other Florida Statutes and the common law governing sovereign immunity to the fullest extent possible. Pursuant to Section 163.01(5)(o), Florida Statutes, Authority Members may not be held jointly liable for the torts of the officers or employees of the Authority, or any other tort attributable to the Authority, and that the Authority alone shall be liable for any torts attributable to it or for torts of is officers, employees or agents, and then only to the extent of the waiver of sovereign immunity or limitation of liability as specified in Section 768.28, Florida Statutes. The Authority Members intend that the Authority shall have all of the privileges and immunities from liability and exemptions from laws, ordinances, rules and common law which apply to the municipalities and counties of the State. Nothing in this Interlocal Agreement is intended to inure to the benefit of any third-party for the purpose of allowing any claim which would otherwise be barred under the doctrine of sovereign immunity or by operation of law.

SECTION 5.04. LIMITED LIABILITY. No Authority Member shall in any manner be obligated to pay any debts, obligations or liabilities arising as a result of any actions of the Authority, the Directors or any other agents, employees, officers or officials of the Authority, except to the extent otherwise mutually agreed upon, and neither the Authority, the Directors or any other agents, employees, officers or officials of the Authority have any authority or power to otherwise obligate any individual Authority Member in any manner.

31

1.1

SECTION 5.05. AMENDMENTS. This Interlocal Agreement may be amended in writing at any time by the concurrence of all of the Directors present at a duly called meeting of the Authority and subsequent ratification by the governing body of each Authority Member. However, this Interlocal Agreement may not be amended so as to (A) permit any profits of the Authority to inure to the benefit of any private person, (B) permit the diversion or application of any of the moneys or other assets of the Authority for any purposes other than those specified herein, (C) adversely affect the tax-exempt status, if applicable, of interest on the Obligations, or (D) materially, adversely affect the security for any Obligations. Notwithstanding any other provision herein, Sections 4.14 through 4.17 hereof may be amended by an interlocal agreement between the Authority and the Authority Member on whose benefit the provision of any such Section is made without the consent of any other Authority Member provided such amendment does not adversely affect any other Authority Member or the Utility System located within the affected Authority Member.

SECTION 5.06. SEVERABILITY. In the event that any provision of this Interlocal Agreement shall, for any reason, be determined invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect by a court of competent jurisdiction, the other provisions of this Interlocal Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.

SECTION 5.07. CONTROLLING LAW. This Interlocal Agreement shall be construed and governed by Florida law.

SECTION 5.08. SUPERCEDES ORIGINAL AGREEMENT. This First Amended and Restated Interlocal Agreement shall supercede in all respects the Original Agreement as of the date hereof. Upon approval of this First Amended and Restated Interlocal Agreement as provided in Section 5.05 hereof, the Original Agreement shall be of no further force and effect.

SECTION 5.09. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Interlocal Agreement shall become effective on the later of (A) the dated date hereof or (B) the date the last initial Authority Member executes this Interlocal Agreement and the filing requirements of Section 5.02 hereof are satisfied.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Interlocal Agreement has been executed by and on behalf of the Authority Members by their authorized officers or officials on this 10^{-6} day of <u>Queenluen</u>, 2000.

CITRUS COUNTY, FLORIDA

By: The Chairman

ATTEST:

tee for DC Cler

P

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Interlocal Agreement has been executed by and on behalf of the Authority Members by their authorized officers or officials on this 22nd day of May, 2000.

NASSAU COUNTY, FLORIDA

By Chairman

Nick D. Deonas

ATTEST:

Cle

J. M. "Chip" Oxley, Jr.

Approved as to form by the Nassau County Attorney:

ichael S Mull

2

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Interlocal Agreement has been executed by and on behalf of the Authority Members by their authorized officers or officials on this 25 day of $______, 2000$.

POLK COUNTY, FLORIDA

97 By:

Chairman

ATTEST:

<u>Pichard M. Weiss</u> Clerk Beg. Marie &. Kessler Deputy Clerk

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Interlocal Agreement has been executed by and on behalf of the Authority Members by their authorized officers or officials on this 1244 day of September , 2000.

SARASOTA COUNTY, FLORIDA B airmar

ATTEST:

Clerk

ATTEST: KAREN E. RUSHING, Clerk of the Circuit Court and Ex-Officio Clerk of the Board of County Commissioners of Sarasofa,County, Florida.

By: Deputy Clerk

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT RELATING TO ESTABLISHMENT OF THE FLORIDA GOVERNMENTAL UTILITY AUTHORITY

Among

Brevard County, Florida Lee County, Florida Polk County, Florida Sarasota County, Florida

Dated as of February 1, 1999

EXECUTION COPY

TABLE OF CONTENTS

- 76-C

ARTICLE I

DEFINITIONS

SECTION 1.01.

ARTICLE II

THE AUTHORITY

-7001201	CREATION
SECTION 2.02	PURPOSES
SECTION 2.01. SECTION 2.02. SECTION 2.03. SECTION 2.04.	AUTHORITY MEMBERS
SECTION 2.05.	DURATION OF AUTHORITY
SECTION 2.04.	

ARTICLE III

MEMBERSHIP AND REPRESENTATION

SECTION 3.01.	MEMBERSHIP.	. 9
SECTION 3.02.	REPRESENTATION.	. 9
SECTION 3.03.	ACTION.	10
SECTION 3.04.	ELECTION OF OFFICERS.	10
SECTION 3.05.	AUTHORITY OF OFFICERS.	11
SECTION 3.06.	RESIGNATION.	11
SECTION 3.07.	POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE BOARD.	11
SECTION 3.08.	MEETINGS.	12
SECTION 3.09.	WITHDRAWAL OR DISMISSAL OF AUTHORITY MEMBERS	12
SECTION 3.10.	EXPENSES	13
SECTION 3.11.	LIABILITY	13

ARTICLE IV

POWERS AND DUTIES

SECTION 4.01.	POWERS
SECTION 4.02.	ACQUISITION OF UTILITY SYSTEMS BY AUTHORITY
	MEMBERS

	ANNUAL BUDGET.	
SECTION 4.03.	ADOPTION OF RATES, FEES OR OTHER CHARGES.	20
SECTION 4.04. SECTION 4.05.	OBLIGATIONS.	21
SECTION 4.05. SECTION 4.06.	AD VALOREM TAXATION NOT AUTHORIZED.	
	CONNECTION FEES.	
	UNPAID FEES.	
	AUTHORITY APPROVAL OF CONSTRUCTION OF WATER AND	
SECTION 4.09.	WASTEWATER FACILITIES.	25
	PLANNING REQUIREMENT.	
SECTION 4.10.	EFFECT OF INCORPORATION OR THE PRESENCE OF A	
SECTION 4.11.	SPECIAL DISTRICT ON AUTHORITY.	26
	CONDUIT TRANSACTIONS.	
SECTION 4.12.	WATER PRODUCTION FACILITIES LOCATED WITHIN THE	
SECTION 4.13.	JURISDICTION OF TAMPA BAY WATER.	26
	PROVISIONS RELATING TO BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA.	
SECTION 4.14.	PROVISIONS RELATING TO LEE COUNTY, FLORIDA.	
CECTION 4.13.		
SECTION 4.16.	PROVISIONS RELATING TO POLK COUNTY, FLORIDA	
SECTION 4.17.	PROVISIONS RELATING TO SARASOTA COUNTY, FLORIDA.	28

ARTICLE V

MISCELLANEOUS

SECTION 5.01.	DELEGATION OF DUTY.	30
SECTION 5.02.	FILING.	30
SECTION 5.03.	IMMUNITY.	30
SECTION 5.04.	LIMITED LIABILITY.	30
SECTION 5.05.	AMENDMENTS.	31
SECTION 5.06.	SEVERABILITY.	31
SECTION 5.07.	CONTROLLING LAW	
SECTION 5.08.	EFFECTIVE DATE.	31
SECTION DIGG.		

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT RELATING TO ESTABLISHMENT OF THE FLORIDA GOVERNMENTAL UTILITY AUTHORITY

THIS INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT, dated as of February 1, 1999 (the "Interlocal Agreement"), entered into among a certain number of local governmental units executing this Interlocal Agreement, each one constituting either a county or municipal corporation located Interlocal Agreement, and constituting a "public agency" under Part I of Chapter 163, in the State of Florida, and constituting be Brevard County, Florida, Lee County, Florida, Polk Florida Statutes, which shall initially be Brevard County, Florida, Lee County, Florida, Polk County, Florida and Sarasota County, Florida (collectively, the "Authority Members"), as evidenced by the signatures of their authorized representatives;

WHEREAS, each of the Authority Members have the power to acquire, own, improve, operate and maintain water and wastewater utility facilities pursuant to their Florida Constitutional powers of local self government, Section 125.01, Florida Statutes (in the case of counties), or Section 166.021, Florida Statutes (in the case of municipal corporations); and

WHEREAS, Part I of Chapter 163, Florida Statutes (the "Interlocal Act"), permits the Authority Members, as public agencies under the Interlocal Act, to enter into interlocal agreements with each other to jointly exercise any power, privilege or authority which such Authority Members share in common and which each might exercise separately, permitting the Authority Members to make the most efficient use of their powers by enabling them to cooperate on a basis of mutual benefit and thereby provide services and facilities in a manner and pursuant to forms of governmental organization that will best serve geographic, economic, population and other factors influencing the needs and development of such Authority Members; and

WHEREAS, Section 163.01(7)(g), Florida Statutes, authorizes the Authority Members pursuant to an interlocal agreement to create a separate legal entity to exercise the common power of the Authority Members to acquire, own, improve, operate and maintain water and wastewater utility facilities; and

WHEREAS, the Authority Members have determined that it is in their best interests to create such a legal entity to acquire, own, improve, operate and maintain water and wastewater utilities, initially consisting of certain utility facilities owned and/or controlled by Avatar Holdings, Inc., and its subsidiaries (collectively, "Avatar"), for the following reasons:

(1) Avatar has heretofore determined and made known that it will not entertain any offer to purchase its utility assets on a piecemeal basis. It will sell all of its utility assets or

none of them. From the public perspective, the most cost effective manner of acquiring such none of them. From the public perspective, the most cost effective manner of acquiring such assets is through a legal entity created pursuant to the Interlocal Act. The acquisition of the assets by said legal entity will be at a purchase price which will enable the Authority to assets by said legal entity maters, fees and charges paid by the customers of Avatar so that those charge the then existing rates, fees and charges paid by the customers of Avatar so that those rates, fees and charges will not be increased solely as a direct result of the acquisition by the rates, fees and charges. In addition, the level and standard of services provided by Authority of such utility assets will be maintained or improved. the Authority to such customers will be maintained or improved.

(2) All Authority Members must meet the comprehensive planning requirements of Chapter 163, Florida Statutes, which mandate that Florida local governments, including the Authority Members, coordinate their plans for future growth with available sources of funding and the availability of infrastructure. The provision of water and wastewater utilities funding and the availability of infrastructure coordination. Public ownership of water and is a major factor in such infrastructure coordination. Public ownership of water and wastewater utility facilities is more desirable and more readily allows for Florida local governments to meet their statutory mandate with respect to the utilities element of their respective comprehensive plans.

(3) The establishment of such legal entity, in the form of the hereinafter described Authority, will ensure that the customers of the water and wastewater facilities owned by the Authority are provided the best, most cost effective service and assure that proper future expansion of the water and wastewater facilities will occur to meet the demands of development of each affected local government.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the covenants herein, it is mutually agreed and understood by and among the Authority Members, that now or may hereafter execute this Interlocal Agreement, that the "Florida Governmental Utility Authority," a legal entity and public body and a unit of local government with all of the privileges, benefits, powers and terms of the hereinafter defined Act and this Interlocal Agreement, is hereby created for the purposes described herein, as follows:

ARTICLE I

DEFINITIONS

DEFINITIONS. The following definitions shall govern the SECTION 1.01. interpretation of this Interlocal Agreement:

"Act" shall mean, collectively, Section 125.01, Florida Statutes (in the case of counties), Section 166.021, Florida Statutes (in the case of municipal corporations), the counties), sector Charters of Authority Members, and other applicable provisions of law.

"Assessable Improvements" shall mean improvements to the Authority Facilities of a local nature and of special benefit to the premises or lands served thereby.

"Authority" shall mean the Florida Governmental Utility Authority, a legal entity and public body created pursuant to the provisions of this Interlocal Agreement and the Act.

"Authority Facilities" shall mean the Authority's water production, transmission, treatment and distribution facilities and property, and the Authority's wastewater treatment, collection and disposal facilities and property, including reuse and reclaimed water facilities, as they may be modified, improved or expanded from time to time, which are owned, leased. operated, managed and/or used, from time to time, by the Authority to provide public water and wastewater services. The Authority Facilities shall include all Utility Systems. Authority Facilities shall include all property, real or personal, tangible or intangible, now or hereafter owned, leased, operated or managed by the Authority in connection with the provision of public water and wastewater services.

"Authority Member" or "Authority Members" shall mean the member or members of the Authority, from time to time, as shall be provided for by this Interlocal Agreement. The Authority Members shall initially be Brevard County, Florida, Lee County, Florida. Polk County, Florida and Sarasota County, Florida.

"Avatar" shall mean Avatar Holdings, Inc., its subsidiaries and affiliate entities, and any successors or assigns thereto.

"Avatar Facilities" shall mean the water and wastewater facilities, property and assets owned by Avatar which shall be acquired by the Authority.

"Board" shall mean the governing board of the Authority, consisting of the Directors appointed hereunder.

"Connection Fees " shall mean fees and charges imposed by the Authority to acquire, construct, equip or expand the capacity of the Authority Facilities for the purpose of paying the equitable share of the capital cost relation construct, equip of the equitable share of the capital cost relating to such acquisition, or reimbursing the equipping of capacity of the Anthesis T or reinduction, expansion or equipping of capacity of the Authority Facilities or expansion construction, expansion new users of the facilities of the Authority Facilitie construction, only reaching the server of the facilities of the Authority Facilities and new thereof in order to serve Areas served by the Authority Facilities and new thereof in order the Service Areas served by the Authority Facilities. Such Connection development interest carrying costs associated with the development under interest carrying costs associated with the Authority Facilities. Fees may include interest carrying costs associated with the Authority Facilities.

"Cost" when used in connection with a Project, shall mean (1) the Authority's cost of construction; (2) costs of acquisition by or for the Authority of such Project; (3) costs of of construction and the cost of the Authority of such Project; (3) costs of of consumerests thereon and the cost of the Authority incidental to such acquisition; (4) the land and interests thereon and/or surety hand and interests thereon and the cost of the Authority incidental to such acquisition; (4) the land and indemnity and/or surety bonds and premiums for insurance during construction; cost of any indemnity to be paid on the Obligation and premiums for insurance during construction; (5) all interest due to be paid on the Obligations relating to the Project during the period of (2) an intervention of such Project and for a reasonable period subsequent to acquisition and construction a acquisition of acquisition and construction as the Board may determine by resolution; (6) completing, legal and other consulting fees and expenses; (7) costs and expenses of the engineering, legal for each Project including the second seco financing incurred for such Project, including audits, fees and expenses of any paying agent, registrar, trustee, consultants, attorneys, engineers, credit enhancers or depository; (8) payments, when due (whether at the maturity of principal or the due date of interest or upon redemption) on any interim or temporary indebtedness incurred for such Project; (9) costs of machinery, equipment, supplies and spare parts required by the Authority for the commencement of operation of such Project or continuation of operation of such Project; and (10) any other costs properly attributable to such Project or to the issuance of Obligations which finance such Project, as determined by generally accepted accounting principles applicable to such Project, and shall include reimbursement to the Authority for any such items of cost paid by the Authority prior to issuance of the Obligations issued to finance such Project. Additional items of cost may be provided pursuant to the Financing Documents.

"Director" shall mean that individual appointed in accordance with the provisions hereof to serve as part of the Board. "Director" shall also include an alternate who is appointed to fill such role by an Authority Member.

"Equivalent Residential Connection" shall mean the standard water and wastewater unit used to calculate demand upon either water or wastewater system capacity, based respectively upon usage of 350 gallons per day of water treatment capacity and 275 gallons per day of wastewater disposal capacity or such other daily usage standard applicable to a Utility System as determined by resolution of the Board.

"Financing Documents" shall mean the resolution or resolutions duly adopted by the Authority, as well as any indenture of trust, trust agreement or other instrument relating the issuance or security of the Obligations.

"Fiscal Year" shall mean the period commencing on October 1 of each year and continuing through the next succeeding September 30, or such other period as may be determined by the Board.

"General Manager" shall mean the individual or entity selected and employed by the Board to serve the Authority in such capacity.

"Interlocal Act" shall mean Part I of Chapter 163, Florida Statutes.

"Interlocal Agreement" shall mean this Interlocal Agreement, including any amendments or supplements hereto, executed and delivered in accordance with the terms hereof

"Obligations" shall mean a series of bonds or other evidence of indebtedness, including, but not limited to, notes, commercial paper, capital leases or any other obligations of the Authority issued hereunder and pursuant to the Financing Documents.

"Pledged Funds" shall mean (1) the revenues, fees, charges, special assessments and other moneys received by the Authority or its designee relating to its ownership or operation of the Authority Facilities, or some portion thereof, (2) until applied in accordance with the terms of the Financing Documents, all moneys in the funds, accounts and subaccounts established thereby, including investments therein, and (3) such other property, assets and moneys of the Authority as shall be pledged pursuant to the Financing Documents; in each case to the extent provided by the Board pursuant to the Financing Documents. The Pledged Funds pledged to one series of Obligations may be different than the Pledged Funds pledged to other series of Obligations.

"Project" shall mean any structure, property or facility which the Authority, from time to time, may determine to construct or acquire as part of its Authority Facilities, together with all improvements, equipment, structures and other facilities necessary or appropriate in connection therewith. This term is to be broadly construed so as to include any lawful undertaking which will accrue to the benefit of the Authority Facilities, including joint ventures and acquisitions of partial interests or contractual rights. "Project" shall include, but not be limited to, acquisition of the Avatar Facilities, and the construction of any improvements thereto. "Project" may also include working capital, as well as any costs or judgments associated with litigation.

"Public Agencies" shall mean any "public agency", as defined in the Interlocal Act, which shall have a portion of the Authority Facilities located within its boundaries.

"Service Area" shall mean the geographic boundaries within which each Utility "Services or is otherwise authorized to provide water and/or wastewater services.

"State" shall mean the State of Florida.

"Utility Acquisition Agreement" shall mean an agreement between the Authority and an Authority Member, other Public Agency or entity relating to the disposition of a Utility System, or portion thereof, which is located within the jurisdiction of such Authority Member or Public Agency.

"Utility System" shall mean the Authority Facilities comprising a separate water and/or wastewater system, which shall be accounted for separately from any other Authority Facilities. Each Utility System shall be designated as such by the Board.

Whenever any words are used in this Interlocal Agreement in the masculine gender, they shall be construed as though they were also used in the feminine or neuter gender in all situations where they would so apply, and whenever any words are used in this Interlocal Agreement in the singular form, they shall be construed as though they were also used in the plural form in all situations where they would so apply.

ARTICLE II

THE AUTHORITY

SECTION 2.01. SECTION INTERPORT AND A SECTION AND A SECTIO **CREATION.** The Authority Members hereby create and establish use for a negative entry and public body and a unit of local government, with all of the privileges, benefits, powers and terms provided a unit of local by the Act. for herein and by the Act.

SECTION 2.02. **PURPOSES.** (A) The purpose of this Interlocal Agreement is for the establishment of the Authority in order to: (i) acquire water and/or wastewater utility for the established to make improvements to make including, but not limited to, the facilities and to make improvements to such facilities and systems which are acquired Avatar Facilities and to make improvements to such facilities and systems which are acquired Avaial a definition of the acquire, construct, own, improve, operate, manage and maintain the by the Authority; (ii) provide the most of t by me Authority Facilities; (iii) provide the most economic and efficient water and wastewater Aumonity services throughout the Service Area of each Utility System in a non-discriminatory utility services throughout the Service Area of each Utility System in a non-discriminatory unity set the provision for rates whereby rates from one Utility System will not manner; (iv) make provision for rates whereby rates from one Utility System will not subsidize improvements or operation and maintenance costs of another Utility System; and (v) dispose, from time to time, of such portions of the Authority Facilities to Authority Members, other Public Agencies or entities as it deems appropriate in accordance with the terms hereof and the terms of any Utility Acquisition Agreements.

The Authority Members do hereby consent and agree to the acquisition of the **(B)** Avatar Facilities within their respective jurisdictions by the Authority and consent to the Authority acquiring, owning, improving, operating and maintaining the Avatar Facilities within their respective jurisdictions in accordance with the terms of this Interlocal Agreement, sound engineering practices and applicable law.

The creation and organization of the Authority and the fulfillment of its (C) objectives serves a public purpose, and is in all respects for the benefit of the people of this State, affected Public Agencies and their constituents, and the persons or entities served by the Authority Facilities. The Authority is performing an essential governmental function. All property of the Authority is and shall in all respects be considered to be public property. and the title to such property shall be held by the Authority for the benefit of the public. The use of such property shall be considered to serve a public purpose, until disposed of upon such terms as the Authority may deem appropriate. Insofar as provided for by law, all Obligations and interest or income thereon and all the property, facilities, services, activities and revenues of the Authority are declared to be nontaxable for any and all purposes by the

7

State or federal government or any unit of the State or federal government to the same extent state or federal government or on behalf of the Authority Members or a Public Agency. as if owned or issued by or on behalf of the Authority Teners or a Public Agency.

SECTION 2.03. AUTHORITY MEMBERS. The Authority Members shall SECTION 2.03. AUTHORITY MEMBERS. The Authority Members shall consist of those Public Agencies as provided in Article III hereof.

SECTION 2.04. DURATION OF AUTHORITY. The Authority shall exist so long as any portion of the Authority Facilities is owned, operated, leased or managed by the Authority or the Authority has Obligations outstanding. At such time as the Authority no longer owns, operates, leases or manages any portion of the Authority Facilities and no longer owns, are outstanding, the Authority shall automatically dissolve unless the Authority Obligations are outstanding, the Authority shall automatically dissolve unless the Authority Obligations are outstanding otherwise. In the event of dissolution, any assets of Members adopt a resolution providing otherwise. In the event of dissolution, any assets of the Authority shall be allocated among the Authority Members based upon the number of the Authority Residential Connections of each Authority Member at the time of such termination.

ARTICLE III

MEMBERSHIP AND REPRESENTATION

SECTION 3.01. MEMBERSHIP. (A) Membership in the Authority shall consist of those Public Agencies selected pursuant to this Article III.

(B) The initial Authority Members shall consist of: Brevard County, Florida, Lee County, Florida, Polk County, Florida and Sarasota County, Florida.

(C) To the extent permitted by the Interlocal Act, the Authority may admit any Public Agency to membership upon application of such Public Agency and the affirmative vote of the majority plus one of all Directors at a duly called meeting of the Authority. This interlocal Agreement need not be amended in order to admit any Public Agency as an Authority Member. Approval of the governing bodies of the Authority Members shall not be required to admit a new Authority Member.

(D) As a precondition to membership in the Authority, each Authority Member shall constitute a Florida municipality, county or such other Public Agency which is permitted by the Interlocal Act to be a member of the Authority. Such new Authority Member shall execute, deliver and record a duly authorized counterpart to this Interlocal Agreement.

SECTION 3.02. REPRESENTATION. (A) Each Authority Member shall appoint one Director to act on its behalf on the Board. Each Director shall be an individual who shall be appointed specifically by name or by position. In addition, each Authority Member may appoint an alternate Director to serve in the absence or unavailability of the Director.

(B) In the event the Director of an Authority Member shall resign or be removed, such Authority Member shall appoint a new Director within thirty (30) calendar days. In the event such Authority Member does not appoint a new Director within thirty (30) calendar days of resignation or removal and such Authority Member has appointed an alternate Director, such alternate Director shall serve in the capacity as Director. In the event such Authority Member does not appoint a new Director within thirty (30) calendar days of resignation or removal and such Authority Member has not appointed an alternate Director, the Board may appoint such Director who shall serve until such time as such affected Authority Member shall appoint a new Director; provided any new Director appointed by

9

the Board shall be a resident of such Authority Member. Any Director who is absent for the Board snall be deemed to have resigned. three (3) consecutive meetings of the Board shall be deemed to have resigned.

Each Authority Member, in its sole discretion, may remove its Director at any time and may appointed by Section 3.06(A) hereof for resignation of a Director. Authority as provided by Section 3.06(A) hereof for resignation of a Director.

No Director may be an elected official of an Authority Member. Directors may be employees of an Authority Member.

Any Director may be removed upon the affirmative vote of at least two-thirds (2/3) of all Directors at a duly called meeting of the Authority.

SECTION 3.03. ACTION. (A) The affairs, actions and duties of the Authority shall be undertaken at a duly called meeting pursuant to Section 3.08 hereof.

At any meeting of the Authority at which any official action is to be taken, a majority of all Directors shall constitute a quorum. A majority vote of a quorum of the majority of the Authority, except as Directors present at a duly called meeting shall constitute an act of the Authority, except as hereinafter provided.

Any action taken by the Board authorizing the acquisition, lease or sale of a (C) Utility System in the jurisdiction of an Authority Member shall require the affirmative vote of the Director representing such Authority Member. Any swap, hedge or other similar arrangement relating to Obligations described in Section 4.05(M) hereof shall require the affirmative vote of the Director of any Authority Member where a Utility System, the revenues of which are pledged to the payment of such Obligations, is located.

A certificate, resolution or instrument signed by the Chairman, Vice-Chairman **(D)** or such other person of the Authority as may be hereafter designated and authorized by the Board shall be evidence of the action of the Authority and any such certificate, resolution or other instrument so signed shall conclusively be presumed to be authentic. Likewise, all facts and matters stated therein shall conclusively be presumed to be accurate and true.

ELECTION OF OFFICERS. Once a year, and at such other SECTION 3.04. time as may be necessary to fill a vacancy, at a duly called meeting of the Board called for the purpose thereof, the Authority through its Directors shall elect a Chairman, a Vice-Chairman and Secretary-Treasurer to conduct the meetings of the Authority and to perform such other functions as herein provided. At the discretion of the Board, the General Manager (or representative thereof) may be appointed as the Secretary-Treasurer. Said Chairman,

Vice-Chairman and Secretary-Treasurer shall serve one (1) year terms unless they resign from the Authority or such officer is replaced by the Board.

SECTION 3.05. AUTHORITY OF OFFICERS. (A) The Chairman and the SECTION 3.05. AUTHORITY OF OFFICERS. (A) The Chairman and the Vice-Chairman shall take such actions, have all such powers and sign all documents on Vice-Chairman shall take such actions, have all such powers and sign all documents on behalf of the Authority and in furtherance of the purposes of this Interlocal Agreement as behalf of the Authority of the Board adopted at a duly called meeting. may be approved by resolution of the Board adopted at a duly called meeting.

(B) The Secretary-Treasurer, or his designee, shall keep minutes of all meetings, proceedings and acts of the Board, but such minutes need not be verbatim. Copies of all proceedings of the meetings of the Authority shall be sent by the Secretary-Treasurer or his minutes of the meetings to the Authority. The Secretary-Treasurer may also attest to the designee to all Directors to the Authority. The Secretary-Treasurer may also attest to the execution of documents. The Secretary-Treasurer shall have such other powers as may be execution of documents of the Board adopted at a duly called meeting.

SECTION 3.06. RESIGNATION. (A) Any Director may resign from all duties or responsibilities hereunder by giving at least thirty (30) calendar days prior written notice sent by registered mail to the General Manager. Such notice shall state the date said resignation shall take effect and such resignation shall take effect on that date.

(B) Any resigning Director who is an officer of the Authority shall immediately turn over and deliver to the General Manager any and all records, books, documents or other property in his possession or under his control which belong to the Authority.

SECTION 3.07. POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE BOARD. The Board shall act as the governing board of the Authority and shall have, in addition to all other powers and duties described herein, the following powers and duties:

(A) To fix the time and place or places at which its regular meetings shall be held, and to call and hold special meetings.

(B) To make and pass rules, regulations, resolutions and orders not inconsistent with the Constitution of the United States or of the State, or to the provisions of the Interlocal Act or this Interlocal Agreement, necessary for the governance and management of the affairs of the Authority, for the execution of the powers, obligations and responsibilities vested in the Authority, and for carrying into effect the provisions of this Interlocal Agreement.

(C) To fix the location of the principal place of business of the Authority and the location of all offices maintained thereunder.

To create any and all necessary offices in addition to Chairman, Vice-(D) 10 Chairman, Vice-(D) 10 Chairman, Vice-(D) 10 Chairman, Vice-chairman and Secretary-Treasurer; to establish the powers, duties and compensation of all Chairman and to require and fix the amount of all official bands Chairman and Sector and fix the amount of all official bonds necessary for the employees; and to require and fix the Authority employees, and funds and property of the Authority.

To select and employ a General Manager, who shall administer the affairs and duties as directed by the Board.

To employ or hire such attorneys or firm(s) of attorneys as it deems appropriate (r) to provide legal advice and/or other legal services to the Authority.

To amend the Authority's name, as permitted by law. (G)

SECTION 3.08. **MEETINGS.** (A) The Board shall convene at a meeting duly called by either a majority of the Directors or the Chairman. The Directors may establish called by claims and places. Meetings shall be conducted at such locations as may be regular meeting times and places. regular meeting in the majority of the Directors or the Chairman. Notice of a meeting, unless determiner of a meeting, unless determiner waived, shall be furnished to each Director by the General Manager not less than otherwise waived, and the determiner to the determ outer wild calendar days prior to the date of such meeting; provided the Chairman or, in his seven (7) calendar days prior to the date of such meeting; provided the Chairman or, in his seven (), provided the Chairman, in a call a meeting upon twenty-four (24) hours written notice, if such officer determines an emergency exists. All meetings shall be noticed in accordance with applicable law.

Within thirty (30) calendar days of the creation of the Authority, the duly (B) appointed Directors shall hold an organizational meeting to elect officers and perform such other duties as are provided for under this Interlocal Agreement.

WITHDRAWAL OR DISMISSAL OF AUTHORITY **SECTION 3.09.** MEMBERS. (A) Any Authority Member may withdraw from the Authority at any time, if the following conditions are satisfied: (i) there shall be at least two (2) Authority Members remaining in the Authority subsequent to withdrawal, and (ii) a certified resolution from the Authority Member's governing body setting forth its intent to withdraw is presented to the Authority. Upon satisfaction of the foregoing conditions, such withdrawal shall be effective.

In the event the Authority no longer owns, operates, leases or manages a Utility **(B)** System, or portion thereof, within the geographic boundaries of an Authority Member, such Authority Member shall be dismissed from the Authority unless (i) subsequent to dismissal there shall be less than two (2) Authority Members remaining in the Authority, or (ii) the

Board, at the request of such Authority Member, determines by resolution to keep such Board, a Member in the Authority.

SECTION THE Authority may establish, from time to time, procedures for reimbursement for reasonable expenses incurred by Authority Members, proceauces and employees of the Authority.

SECTION 3.11. SECTION agent, official or employee of the Authority shall be liable for any action taken pursuant to this Interlocal Agreement in of the Authority or for any omission, except gross negligence LIABILITY. No Director, agent, officer, official or employee of the Authomy sum of the Authom of th good faith of 101 any other Director, agent, officer, official or employee of the Authority.

ARTICLE IV

POWERS AND DUTIES

SECTION 4.01. POWERS. (A) The Authority shall have all powers to carry out section the section of this Interlocal Agreement, including the following powers which shall be in the purposes of this Interlocal Agreement, including the following powers which shall be in the purposes of this section of the sect

(i) To acquire, construct, own, operate, manage, maintain, dispose of, improve and expand the Authority Facilities, and to have the exclusive control and jurisdiction thereof.

(ii) To the extent permitted by law, to provide for mandatory water and wastewater connections of potential customers located in a Service Area upon availability of service by the Authority.

(iii) To fix, levy and collect rates, fees and other charges (including Connection Fees) from persons or property, or both, for the use of the services, facilities and product of the Authority Facilities or to pay the operating or financing costs of the Authority Facilities available to potential users; to fix and collect charges for making connections with the Authority Facilities and, to the extent provided by law, to provide for reasonable penalties to be imposed on any users or property for any such rates, fees or charges that are delinquent, all as more specifically described in Section 4.04 hereof.

(iv) To contract for the service of engineers, accountants, attorneys and other experts or consultants, and such other agents and employees as the Board may require or deem appropriate from time to time.

(v) To acquire such lands and rights and interests therein, including lands under water and riparian rights and to acquire such personal property as the Authority may deem necessary and appropriate in connection with the acquisition, ownership, expansion, improvement, operation and maintenance of the Authority Facilities and to hold and dispose of all real and personal property under its control. To the extent the power of eminent domain is available to the Authority in accordance with applicable law, in particular the Interlocal Act, such power may be exercised by the Authority both within and outside the Service Areas of the Authority Facilities for the purpose of carrying out the intent of this Interlocal Agreement. (vi) To exercise exclusive jurisdiction, control and supervision over the Authority Facilities and to make and enforce such rules and regulations for the maintenance, management and operation of the Authority Facilities as may be, in the maintenance of the Board, necessary or desirable for the efficient operation of the judgment of the Board, necessary or desirable for the efficient operation of the Authority Facilities in accomplishing the purposes of this Interlocal Agreement.

(vii) To enter into other interlocal agreements or join with any other special purpose or general purpose local governments, public agencies or authorities in the exercise of common powers or to assist the Authority in acquiring land and rights or interests therein.

(viii) To contract with private or public entities or persons to provide, treat or receive water or to provide or receive wastewater disposal, collection or treatment. To contract with any private or public entity or person for the operation or management of the Authority Facilities.

(ix) To prescribe methods of pretreatment of industrial wastes not amenable to treatment with domestic wastewater before accepting such wastes for treatment and to refuse to accept such industrial wastes when not sufficiently pretreated as may be prescribed, and, to the extent permitted by law, to prescribe penalties for the refusal of any person or corporation to so pretreat such industrial wastes.

(x) To the extent provided by law, to require and enforce the use of services, products and facilities of the Authority whenever and wherever they are accessible, and to require and enforce the installation and dedication to the Authority of water and wastewater facilities or easements as a condition precedent to the provision of service by the Authority or by another entity authorized by the Authority to provide interim service until Authority services, products and facilities are available.

(xi) To sell or otherwise dispose of the effluent, sludge or other byproducts as a result of wastewater treatment.

(xii) To accomplish construction directly or by letting construction contracts to other entities, whether public or private, for all or any part of the construction of improvements to the Authority Facilities as determined by the Board in accordance with applicable law.

(xiii) To construct, maintain and operate connecting, intercepting, or outlet wastewater and wastewater mains and pipes and water mains, conduits or pipelines in, along or under any streets, alleys, highways or other public places or ways regulated by or under the jurisdiction of the State or any political subdivision or municipal corporation when necessary or convenient for the purposes of the Authority.

(xiv) Subject to such provisions and restrictions as may be set forth in any Financing Document, to enter into contracts with the government of the United States or any agency or instrumentality thereof, the State, or with any municipality, county, district, authority, political subdivision, private corporation, partnership, association or individual providing for or relating to the treatment, collection and disposal of wastewater, or the treatment, supply and distribution of water and any other matters relevant thereto or otherwise necessary to effect the purposes of this Interlocal Agreement. To receive and accept from any federal or State agency, grants or loans for or in aid of the planning, construction, reconstruction or financing of improvements, additions or extensions to the Authority Facilities and to receive and accept aid or contributions or loans from any other source of either money, labor or other things of value, to be held, used and applied only for the purpose for which such grants, contributions or loans may be made.

(xv) To assume the ownership, lease, operation, management and/or control of any publicly or privately owned water and wastewater facilities, including the assumption of the financial liabilities associated with such water and wastewater facilities.

(xvi) To divide the Authority Facilities into separate units, benefit areas, subsystems or subdistricts, including Utility Systems, for imposing special assessments, setting rates, accounting or financing improvements or additions, or any other purpose.

(xvii) To appoint advisory boards and committees to assist the Board in the exercise and performance of the powers and duties provided in this Interlocal Agreement.

(xviii) To sue and be sued in the name of the Authority.

(xix) To adopt and use a seal and authorize the use of a facsimile thereof.

(xx) To contract with any public or private entity or person to manage and operate the Authority Facilities, or any portion thereof, upon such terms as the Board deems appropriate. (xxi) Subject to such provisions and restrictions as may be set forth herein and in any Financing Document, to sell or otherwise dispose of the Authority Facilities, or any portion thereof, upon such terms as the Board deems appropriate. Facilities of the Authority Acquisition Agreements to effect such dispositions.

ł

(xxii) To acquire, by purchase, gift, devise or otherwise, and to dispose of, real or personal property, or any estate therein.

(xxiii) To make and execute contracts or other instruments necessary or convenient to the exercise of its powers.

(xxiv) To provide such retirement benefits and program as the Board deems appropriate.

(xxv) To maintain an office or offices at such place or places as the Board may designate from time to time.

(xxvi) To hold, control and acquire by donation or purchase, or dispose of, any public easements, dedications to public use, platted reservations for public purposes, or any reservations for those purposes authorized by this Interlocal Agreement and to make use of such easements, dedications and reservations for any of the purposes authorized by this Interlocal Agreement.

(xxvii) To lease, as lessor or lessee, to or from any person, firm, corporation, association or body, public or private, facilities or property of any nature to carry out any of the purposes authorized by this Interlocal Agreement.

(xxviii) To borrow money and issue bonds, certificates, warrants, notes, obligations or other evidence of indebtedness.

(xxix) To assess, levy, impose, collect and enforce special assessments to provide Assessable Improvements upon all or any portion of the lands located within a Service Area. Such special assessments may be apportioned among benefitted property in a manner proportionate with the benefits received or commensurate with the burdens alleviated by the maintenance and use of property based upon such factors or combination of factors as determined by resolution of the Board. Such special assessments may, in the discretion of the Board, be imposed, collected and enforced using any methods and procedures authorized by law, including Section 197.3632, Florida Statutes; or the Board may adopt by resolution its own method or procedures or use any other method or means for levy, imposition, collection and enforcement not inconsistent with law. (xxx) To apply for and accept grants, loans and subsidies from any governmental entity for the acquisition, construction, operation and maintenance of governmental Facilities, and to comply with all requirements and conditions imposed the Authority Facilities, in connection therewith.

(xxxi) To the extent allowed by law and to the extent required to effectuate the purposes hereof, to exercise all privileges, immunities and exemptions accorded municipalities and counties of the State under the provisions of the constitution and laws of the State.

(xxxii) To invest its moneys in such investments as directed by the Board in accordance with State law and which shall be consistent in all instances with the applicable provisions of the Financing Documents.

(xxxiii) To purchase such insurance as it deems appropriate.

(xxxiv) To do all acts and to exercise all of the powers necessary, convenient, incidental, implied or proper in connection with any of the powers, duties or purposes authorized by this Interlocal Agreement or the Act.

(B) In exercising the powers conferred by this Interlocal Agreement the Board shall act by resolution or motion made and adopted at duly noticed and publicly held meetings in conformance with applicable law.

(C) The provisions of Chapter 120, Florida Statutes, shall not apply to the Authority.

SECTION 4.02. ACQUISITION OF UTILITY SYSTEMS BY AUTHORITY MEMBERS. (A) Each Authority Member or other Public Agency in whose jurisdiction the Authority owns a Utility System, or portion thereof, shall have the exclusive right to acquire such Utility System, or portion thereof. The terms of such acquisition and purchase price thereof shall be established pursuant to the Utility Acquisition Agreement between the Authority and the respective Authority Member or other Public Agency relating thereto.

(B) The Authority agrees that each Authority Member shall have the right to acquire any Utility System, or portion thereof, located within the jurisdiction of such Authority Member in the event the Authority, in its sole discretion, determines to sell such Utility System, or portion thereof, and the Authority and Authority Member have not entered into a Utility Acquisition Agreement in regard to such Utility System. The purchase price for such Utility System, or portion thereof, shall be the amount required to repay any Obligations associated with such Utility System, or portion thereof, and any expenses relating to management and operation of the Utility System or Authority. Nothing herein shall prevent the Authority and Authority Member from agreeing to the purchase of such shall prevent the Authority thereof, by the Authority Member at a price other than as Utility System, or portion thereof, by the Authority Member at a price other than as described above.

describes **SECTION 4.03. ANNUAL BUDGET.** (A) Prior to October 1 of each year the **SECTION 4.03. ANNUAL BUDGET.** (A) Prior to October 1 of each year the **SECTION 4.03. Section** budget an annual budget for the Authority and for each Utility System. Such Board will adopt an annual budget for the manner and within the time periods required for the adoption budget shall be prepared in the manner and within the time periods required for the adoption budget shall be prepared for county governments under general law. The annual budget of a tentative and final budget for county governments under general law. The annual budget shall contain an estimate of receipts by source and an itemized estimation of expenditures shall contain an estimate to meet the financial needs and obligations of the Authority and anticipated to be incurred to meet the financial prepare the annual budget. The annual each Utility System. The General Manager shall prepare the annual budget. The annual each Utility System. The General improvement plan for each Utility System.

(B) The Board shall publish a notice of the meeting in which the annual budget is to be adopted, which notice shall be published once a week for two (2) consecutive weeks thirty (30) days prior to the date of the hearing in a newspaper qualified to accept legal thirty (30) days prior to the date of the hearing in a newspaper qualified to accept legal advertisement within each county in the jurisdiction of the Authority in which a Utility advertisement within each county in the proposed budget indicating the five-year capital plan for System is located. A copy of the proposed budget indicating the five-year capital plan for each Utility System and a notice of the time and place of the Board meeting at which the annual budget is to be adopted shall be provided to each Authority Member prior to the first publication date.

(C) The adopted budget shall be the operating and fiscal guide for the Authority for the ensuing Fiscal Year. The Board may from time to time amend the budget at any duly called regular or special meeting.

(D) The Authority shall provide financial reports in such form and in such manner as prescribed pursuant to this Interlocal Agreement and Chapter 218, Florida Statutes.

(E) The Board shall cause to be made at least once a year, within one hundred eighty (180) days of the end of the Fiscal Year, a report of the Authority Facilities, including all matters relating to expansions, acquisitions, rates, revenues, expenses, principal and interest requirements of the Obligations and the status of all funds and accounts. Copies of such report shall be filed with the Secretary-Treasurer and shall be open to public inspection. The report shall be known as the "Annual Authority Facilities Report". The Annual Authority Facilities Report or reports required by law or may be issued separately. The Secretary-Treasurer shall provide each Authority Member with a copy of the Annual Authority Facilities Report.

(A) The Board Small deer and products of each Utility System comprising a portion of the services, facilities to be paid by each customer which may be connected with of the services, latent by each customer which may be connected with or provided Authority Facilities. The Authority may establish connected with or provided Authority Facilities. The Authority may establish separate rates, fees and service by such Authority of the Authority Facilities, including and the service for different portions of the Authority Facilities, including and the service for different portions of the Authority Facilities, including and the service for different portions of the Authority Facilities. service by such rates portions of the Authority Facilities, including separate rates, fees and charges for different portions. Each Utility System shall be maintained. charges for anticipation of the system. Each Utility System shall be maintained as an independent charges for each Utility System. enterprise fund.

1

ł

Such rates, fees and charges shall be adopted and revised so as to provide moneys, Willow, the expenses of operating, managing, expanding, improving and maintaining all times to pay the expenses including renewal and replacement. all times to pay and maintaining including renewal and replacement reserves for such Authority the Authority renewal and interest on the Obligation the Authority the principal and interest on the Obligations as the same shall become Facilities, and to provide a reasonable more therefore and to provide a reasonable more therefore. Facilities, and to provide a reasonable margin of safety over and above the due and reserves therefore, Notwithstanding any other due and reserves and payments. Notwithstanding any other provision in this Interlocal total amount of such payments fees and charges should always be set. total amount of rates, fees and charges should always be sufficient to comply fully with any Agreement, such rates in the Financing Documents. The Aut Agreement, such and in the Financing Documents. The Authority shall charge and collect covenants contained charges so adopted and contract and charges and collect covenants contained charges so adopted and revised, and such rates, fees and charges shall such rates, fees and charges shall such rates, for and charges shall such rates, for and charges shall not be subject to the supervision of the State. The subject with the supervision of the State. not be subject to bound bureau, bureau, sener or other political subdivision of the State. The Authority may enter into an interlocal agency or other political subdivision of the State. agency of outer particular interiocal agreement with an Authority Member in whole or in part the power to approve the rates, fees and charges of the Utility System located within the jurisdiction of such Authority Member. In exercising such delegated power of approval of the rates, fees and charges of any such Utility System, the rates, fees and charges established by the Authority Member shall be consistent with the requirements contained in this Section 4.04 and shall be sufficient to comply fully with all covenants contained in the applicable Financing Documents.

Such rates, fees and charges for each Utility System shall be just and equitable **(C)** and uniform for the users in the same class and may be based upon or computed upon any factor or combination of factors affecting the use of the services, products or facilities furnished to the customers of such Utility System, as may be determined by the Board from nme to time. Except as described in Sections 4.04(F) and (G) hereof, no rates, fees or charges shall be fixed, adopted or revised under the foregoing provisions of this Section 4.04 until after a duly noticed public hearing at which all of the customers of the Authority Facilities affected thereby, or owners, tenants or occupants served or to be served thereby and all other interested persons shall have an opportunity to be heard concerning the proposed rates, fees or charges. Notice of such public hearing setting forth the proposed schedule or schedules of rates, fees or charges shall be given by one publication in a newspaper circulating in the portion of the Service Area or Areas affected by such proposed rates, fees or charges at least twenty (20) days before the date fixed in such notice for the states, fees or charges at least twenty (20) days before the date fixed in such notice for the rates, fees or charges at the adjourned from time to time. After such hearing, the proposed public hearing, which may be adjourned from time to time. After such hearing, the proposed public hearing, either as initially adopted, or as modified or amended public hearing, which may be a journe in time to time. After such hearing, the proposed schedules, either as initially adopted, or as modified or amended, may be finally schedule or schedules, and

adopted.

The rates, fees or charges adopted for any class of customers served shall be (D) Include, ditional customers thereafter served which shall fall within the same extended to cover any additional further hearing or notice extended to cover any further hearing or notice. class, without the necessity of any further hearing or notice.

The Board may appoint the General Manager, a Director, committee of (E) The Board master to conduct the public hearing or hearings on its behalf Directors, and/or a special master. The General Manager Directors Directors, and of a open of the open of the second meaning of hearings on its behalf relating to rates, fees and charges. The General Manager, Director, committee of Directors relating to rates, special master shall act as hearing officers and relating to rates, need an aster shall act as hearing officers and report to the Board its and or designated special mustic hearing. Except as provided and or designated spectrum public hearing. Except as provided pursuant to a delegation in an findings relating to such public hearing. Member only the Port findings relating to a delegation in an findings relating to a delegation in an interlocal agreement with an Authority Member, only the Board may set or revise rates, fees interlocal agreement with an Authority Member, only the Board may set or revise rates, fees

and charges.

Notwithstanding the provision of Section 4.04(C) hereof, no public hearing (r) not not the Authority by resolution of the rates, fees and charges shall be required for adoption by the Authority by resolution of the rates, fees and charges shall be required to the state tariff approved by the Florida Public Service Commission or as contained in the rate tariff Authority Member which here contained in an Authority Member which has exercised its right to regulate such otherwise approved by an Authority Member which has exercised its right to regulate such otherwise approximate system owned by Avatar. Likewise, the Board shall have the authority rates for each Utility System owned to the tariffe of states and the system of rates 101 cach of an approved rate tariffs of other acquired Utility Systems in the future without the requirement of such a public hearing.

Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 4.04(C) hereof, no public hearing (G) shall be required for adoption by the Board of a periodic automatic indexing factor applicable to the initial or any revised schedule of rates, fees and charges of any Utility System.

SECTION 4.05. **OBLIGATIONS.** (A) The Board shall have the power and it is hereby authorized to provide pursuant to the Financing Documents, at one time or from ame to time in series, for the issuance of Obligations of the Authority, or notes in anticipation thereof, for one or more of the following purposes:

- Paying all or part of the Cost of one or more Projects, (i)
- Refunding any bonds or other indebtedness of the Authority, **(ii)**

- (iii) Assuming or repaying the indebtedness relating to Authority Facilities, acquired or leased by the Authority from a public or private entity,
 - Setting aside moneys in a renewal or replacement account,
- (v) Funding a debt service reserve account,

(iv)

- (vi) Capitalizing interest on the Obligations,
- (vii) Paying costs of issuance relating to the Obligations, and
- (viii) Any other purpose relating to this Interlocal Agreement.

The principal of and the interest on each series of Obligations shall be payable from the Pledged Funds, all as determined pursuant to the Financing Documents. The Authority may pledged Funds, all as determined pursuant to the Financing Documents. The Authority may grant a lien upon and pledge the Pledged Funds in favor of the holders of each series of Obligations in the manner and to the extent provided in the Financing Documents. Such Obligations shall immediately be subject to such lien without any physical delivery pledged Funds shall be valid and binding as against all parties having claims of any thereof and such lien shall be valid and binding the Authority.

The Obligations of each series shall be dated, shall bear interest and such rate or rates, shall mature at such time or times not exceeding forty (40) years from their date or dates, may be made redeemable before maturity, at the option of the Authority, at such price or prices and under such terms and conditions, all as shall be determined by the Board pursuant to the Financing Documents. The Board shall determine the form of the Obligations, the manner of executing such Obligations, and shall fix the denomination of such Obligations and the place of payment of the principal and interest, which may be at any bank or trust company within or without the State. In case any officer whose signature or a facsimile of whose signature shall appear on any Obligations shall cease to be such officer before the delivery of such Obligations, such signature or such facsimile shall nevertheless be valid and sufficient for all purposes the same as if he or she had remained in office until delivery. The Board may sell Obligations in such manner and for such price as it may determine to be in the best interest of the Authority in accordance with the terms of the Financing Documents. In addition to the Pledged Funds, the Obligations may be secured by such credit enhancement as the Board determines to be appropriate pursuant to the Financing Documents. The Obligations may be issued as capital appreciation bonds, current interest bonds, term bonds, serial bonds, variable bonds or any combination thereof, all as shall be determined pursuant to the Financing Documents.

(C) Prior to the preparation of definitive Obligations of any series, the Board may (C) Prior to an property of actuality contractions of any series, the Board may receipts, interim certificates or temporary Obligations, exchangeable for issue interim Obligations when such Obligations have been executed and issue interim reccipits, when such Obligations have been executed and are available for definitive Obligations way also provide for the replacement of any Obligations definitive Obligations also provide for the replacement of any Obligation which shall delivery. The Board may also destroyed or lost. Obligations may be issued with delivery. The Dome mutilated, or be destroyed or lost. Obligations may be issued without any other become mutilated, or the happening of any other conditions or things then the become mutilaicu, shappening of any other conditions or things than those proceedings, proceedings or the happening which are specifically required by this Interlocal t proceedings or une superior of things which are specifically required by this Interlocal Agreement, the conditions or things or other applicable laws. conditions of aments or other applicable laws.

ł

ł

The proceeds of any series of Obligations shall be used for such purposes, and (D) The process and under such restrictions, if any, as the Board may shall be disbursed in such manner and under such restrictions, if any, as the Board may shall be disbursed to the Financing Documents. snau of and inder and inder provide pursuant to the Financing Documents.

The Financing Documents may also contain such limitations upon the issuance (E) (E) Obligations as the Board may deem appropriate, and such additional of additional be issued under such restrictions and limited. of additional congeneration and such additional of additional be issued under such restrictions and limitations as may be prescribed by Obligations shall be issued. The Financing Documents Obligations share of the Colligations and the Pledged Fundaments as may be prescribed by such Financing contain such provisions and the Pledged Funds as the Board deems appropriate terms in relation to the inconsistent herewith and which shall not be inconsistent herewith.

Obligations shall not be deemed to constitute a general obligation debt of the Authority or the Authority Members or a pledge of the faith and credit of the Authority or Autority of the Authority Members, but such Obligations shall be payable solely from the Pledged In volume and any moneys received from the credit enhancers of the Obligations, in accordance with the terms of the Financing Documents. The issuance of Obligations shall not directly or indirectly or contingently obligate the Authority or any of the Authority Members to levy or to pledge any form of ad valorem taxation whatsoever therefor. No holder of any such Obligations shall ever have the right to compel any exercise of the ad valorem taxing power on the part of any of the Authority Members to pay any such Obligations or the interest thereon or the right to enforce payment of such Obligations, or the interest thereon, against any property of the Authority or any of the Authority Members, nor shall such Obligations constitute a charge, lien or encumbrance, legal or equitable, upon any property of the Authority or any of the Authority Members, except the Pledged Funds in accordance with the terms of the Financing Documents.

(G) All Pledged Funds shall be deemed to be trust funds, to be held and applied solely as provided in the Financing Documents. Such Pledged Funds may be invested by the Authority in such manner as provided in the Financing Documents.

Any holder of Obligations, except to the extent the rights herein given may be **(H)** restricted by the Financing Documents, may, either at law or in equity, by suit, action,

23

mandamus or other proceeding, protect and enforce any and all rights under the laws of the mandamus or other proceeding, protect and enforce any and all rights under the laws of the mandamus or other proceeding, proceeding children any and all rights under the laws of the mandamus or other proceeding, proceeding children and competent and any enforce and competent suite or granted hereunder or under the Financing Documents, and may enforce and competent suite or granted hereunder or under the Financing Documents, and may enforce and competent suite or granted hereunder or under the Financing Documents and all rights under the laws of the suite or granted hereunder or under the Financing Documents, and may enforce and competent suite or granted hereunder or under the Financing Documents and all rights under the laws of the Sute of granted hereining of all agreements or covenants required by this Interlocal Agreement, or by the performance of all agreements, to be performed by the Authority or by any offer the performance of an age to the performed by the Authority or by any officer thereof.

The Obligations may be validated, at the sole discretion of the Board, pursuant (1) Income (1) Income (1) The Obligations of the sole discretion of the Board, pursuant (1) The Obligations may be issued pursuant to and secured by a to Chapter 75, Florida Statutes. Obligations may be issued pursuant to and secured by a

resolution of the Board.

In addition to the other provisions and requirements of this Interlocal (J) III automotion Documents may contain such provisions as the Board deems

sppropriate.

All Obligations issued hereunder shall not be invalid for any irregularity or (K) All congettings for the issuance and sale thereof and shall be incontestable in the defect in the proceedings for value. No proceedings in the defect in the protectings for value. No proceedings in respect to the issuance of such hands of bona fide purchasers except such as are required built to the issuance of such bunds of Dona nuclear second second such as are required by this Interlocal Agreement, the Obligations shall be necessary except such as are required by this Interlocal Agreement, the Obligations shall occuments and general law. The provisions of the Financing Documents shall Financing Documents the Authority of the Financing Documents shall Financing Documents shall Financing Documents shall constitute an irrevocable contract between the Authority and the holders of the Obligations constitute at the provisions thereof ussued pursuant to the provisions thereof.

Holders of Obligations shall be considered third party beneficiaries hereunder (L) and may enforce the provisions hereof.

The Board may enter into such swap, hedge or other similar arrangements (M) relating to any Obligations as it deems appropriate.

AD VALOREM TAXATION NOT AUTHORIZED. The SECTION 4.06. Authority shall not have the power to levy and assess an ad valorem tax on any property within the Service Areas for any reason.

CONNECTION FEES. (A) The Authority is empowered to SECTION 4.07. ky and collect Connection Fees relating to the Authority Facilities for capital improvements and debt service on such capital improvements under such conditions as shall be prescribed by the Board. Connection Fees may become Pledged Funds in accordance with the terms of the Financing Documents.

All Connection Fees shall be reviewed no later than one (1) year after the (B) equisition of the Avatar Facilities by the Authority, and at least once every three (3) years thereafter, by the Board to determine whether such Connection Fees are equitable and proportionate to the current estimate of costs for providing the capital improvements for

which such Connection Fees are imposed. The Board may change or revise the schedule of which such Connection Fees upon compliance with the notice and hearing requirements set for the schedule of which such Connection 1 compliance with the notice and hearing requirements set forth for the Connection Fees upon compliance charges. Connection of rates, fees and other charges.

SECTION THE BOARD SECTION THE BOARD SHE BOARD SHE BOARD SHE POWER, under such she procedures as the Board may adopt from time to time, to discontinue and shut off reasonable procedures as the Board may adopt from time to time, to discontinue and shut off reasonable procedures as the Board may adopt from time to time, to discontinue and shut off UNPAID FEES. The Board shall have the power, under such reasonable procedures at and wastewater services until delinquent fees, rates or charges, including either or both water and wastewater and the cost of restoration of either or both water and discontinuance and the cost of restoration of such water and interest and charges, or both, are fully paid; and, for such purposes the total interest and charges for both, are fully paid; and, for such purposes, the Authority may enter wastewater services, or premises of any person firm corporation wastewater services, or or premises of any person, firm, corporation or body, public or onto any lands, waters or premises of any person, firm, corporation or body, public or onto any muss, when Authority within the Service Areas.

AUTHORITY APPROVAL OF CONSTRUCTION OF SECTION OF SECTION WASTEWATER FACILITIES. (A) The Board may adopt all necessary WATER AND WASTEWATER provide design and construction and const WATER AND WATER regulation of facilities to the Authority.

The Authority may require, as a condition precedent to the approval of any (B) the Authority Facilities, (i) that all subdivision-type infrastructure, or other connection to the Authority infrastructure infrastructure. connection to the assistance of the second s contributed datasets and necessary easements be dedicated to the Authority, (ii) that the developer or customer, and necessary treatment facilities or contributed to the Authority, (ii) that the developer or customer, and the developer make available interim treatment facilities or services or contract for same on an interim make available interimed compared on a fille developer make available and interim basis from an authorized service provider, and (iii) that the developer, or the person or entity basis nom an energy of the person of entity the developer has contracted with, to provide interim treatment service, or lease back for ne developer line back for nominal consideration and maintain such dedicated or contributed facilities until such time nomination of the services and the services in the services and servic consistent with applicable regulations of the Authority Members.

PLANNING REQUIREMENT. (A) In addition to the other SECTION 4.10. powers enumerated in this Interlocal Agreement the Authority shall have the power to adopt a master plan for the provision of utility services within the Service Area of each Utility System. Such master plan may include for each Utility System, at a minimum: the identification of current customers and the projections of future customers and their profiles (residential, commercial, industrial); a review and general inventory of all existing mfrastructure and facilities within the Service Area of each Utility System; and an identification of water supply and treatment alternatives and available wastewater treatment and disposal alternatives, including plans for the use of reclaimed or reused water alternatives.

(B) Prior to the adoption of the annual budget, a five-year capital improvement (B) Prior to an each Authority Member for the Utility System within their be submitted to each Authority Member for the Utility System within their shall be inrisdictions for a determination by such Authority Member that d **blan** shall be submitted for a determination by such Authority Member that the capital respective jurisdictions for a determination by such Authority Member that the capital respective plan is consistent with the applicable local government compared. respective jurisdiculous sitent with the applicable local government comprehensive plan of improvement plan is consistent with the applicable local government comprehensive plan of improvement plan is adopted pursuant to Chapter 163, Part II Florida Sector improvement plan is a solution of the solution

All utility expansion or line extension policies adopted by the Board shall be (C) All development regulations, local comprehensive plans and other consistent with the land development regulations, local comprehensive plans and other consistent with the adopted by the Authority Members within which a Utility System is

located.

EFFECT OF INCORPORATION OR THE PRESENCE OF SECTION AUTHORITY. The subsequent incorporation or annexation A SPECIAL DISTRICT ON AUTHORITY. The subsequent incorporation or annexation A SPECIAL DISTINCTION of annexation and and any area initially included within a Service Area, or the presence or creation of any special of any area initially included area, shall not impair nor alter the authority of any area mutany area, shall not impair nor alter the authority, power and purposes district within a Service Area, shall not impair nor alter the authority, power and purposes district within a berrowiding water and wastewater services and facilities within any portion of the Authority for providing within any municipality. of the Autionity for provided within any municipality, special district or subsequently of such Service Area now included within any municipality or special district or such of such any municipality or special district.

CONDUIT TRANSACTIONS. In addition to the powers SECTION 4.12. Franted to the Authority hereunder, including the power to issue Obligations pursuant to this grantee to une Authority may issue Obligations, to the extent permitted by law, for the Arucit 17, more of loaning the proceeds thereof to a public or private entity, which shall principal purpose the acquisition and construction of water treatment, production or finance or refinance the acquisition and construction of water treatment, production or ransmission facilities or wastewater treatment, transmission or disposal facilities. Such Obligations shall be secured in such manner as determined by the Board. Such security may melude moneys received pursuant to a loan agreement between the Authority and such public or private entity. Such Obligations shall have the terms provided in Section 4.05 hereof.

WATER PRODUCTION **FACILITIES LOCATED** SECTION 4.13. WITHIN THE JURISDICTION OF TAMPA BAY WATER. In order to comply with Section 3.02(B) of the Amended and Restated Interlocal Agreement reorganizing Tampa Bay Water, a Regional Water Supply Authority ("Tampa Bay Water"), the Authority agrees to use Tampa Bay Water (directly or through a member government of Tampa Bay Water) as ns exclusive supplier of water to be delivered to customers located within the geographic territory of Tampa Bay Water, to the same extent as required by the member governments of Tampa Bay Water (other than Tampa) under such Amended and Restated Interlocal Agreement. In order to comply with this provision as it relates to the proposed acquisition of the water facilities of Avatar and other water facilities located in Hillsborough County, Florida, Pasco County, Florida and Pinellas County, Florida (the "Tampa Bay Water Service

Area), the Authority Si offer to sell, lease or otherwise dispose of the water production facilities __ich it acquires and any other water production facilities __ich it acquires area to Tampa Brown Area, the Automaty and any other water production facilities facilities of Avatar and any other to Tampa Bav Water Service Area to Tampa Bav Water Are A star and any one production tacilities lich it acquires within the facilities of Avatar and any one production tacilities lich it acquires within the facilities by the Authority, at a cost equal to the average of two independent of the facilities by the Authority facilities facilities by the Authority facilities facilities by the Authority facilities facilities facilities by the Authority facilities for the facilities f Bay Water Sci view Authority, at a cost equal to the average of two independent MAI Temps facilities by the Authority, at a cost equal to the average of two independent MAI of such facilities of such water production facilities, one of which shall be by an approximate of such solution of such water production facilities of such water production facilities. 1 such facilities by the reduction facilities, one of which shall be by an appraiser selected of such facilities. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Interlocal A appraisals of such water. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Interlocal Agreement, by Tampa Bay Water. Soft enforcing the provisions of this Section 4 12 41 by Tampa Bay water. by Tampa Bay water is hereby designated as a third and the Authority and solely for purposes of enforcing the provisions of this Section 4.13, the Authority of solely for purposes and solely for purposes agree that Tampa Bay Water is hereby designated as a third-party beneficiary Members agree provisions of this Section 4.13 shall control over any other and the provisions of the section 4.13 shall control over any other and the provisions of the section 4.13 shall control over any other and the sec Members agree user this Section 4.13 shall control over any other provisions of this bereto. The provisions of this may be in conflict herewith. Notwithstanding bereto. The provisions which may be in conflict herewith. Notwithstanding any provisions of this interlocal Agreement which may be Authority need not offer to call the section 4.13 to the contrary, the Authority need not offer to call the Interlocal Agreement the contrary, the Authority need not offer to sell, lease or otherwise in this Section 4.13 to the contrary, the Authority need not offer to sell, lease or otherwise in this section 4.13 to the contrary for the Authority need not offer to sell, lease or otherwise in this Section 4.15 to roduction facilities of Avatar which are acquired by the Authority and dispose of the water production facilities, provided Hillsborough Country in and operate such facilities, provided Hillsborough Country in the Authority and dispose of the water provided Hillsborough County is not an Authority and it may own and operate such facilities, provided Hillsborough County is not an Authority

Member.

PROVISIONS RELATING TO BREVARD COUNTY, SECTION SECTION FLORIDA. The following provisions of this Section 4.14 shall relate solely to Brevard

County:

(A) Levy of Special Assessments. No Special Assessments may be levied by the Authority in Direction of the Special Assessments is approved by the electors residing in the mless the imposition of the Special Assessments shall be imposed by the electors residing in the mless me imposition of (ii) the Special Assessments shall be imposed within a municipality located area affected, or (ii) the special Assessments shall be imposed within a municipality located m Brevard County.

Establishment of Rates. The Authority shall conduct all rate hearings for proposed rate increases affecting residents of Brevard County within the affected area. In proposed line and and a Brevard County is an Authority Member the Authority shall conduct at least one public hearing on any proposed material expansion of the Authority Facilities in Brevard County, which hearing shall take place within the area affected. A material expansion shall be deemed to include any expansion which will result in a rate mcrease over and above any increase in the Consumer Price Index.

Miscellaneous. Nothing in this Interlocal Agreement shall prevent or prohibit **(C)** Brevard County from creating a water and sewer district pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 153, Florida Statutes. In the event such a district is created, all rights, title and mterest of the County under this Interlocal Agreement relating to the acquisition of Barefoot Bay facilities may be assigned by the County to the governing board of the district at the closing of any purchase of the Barefoot Bay facilities. The Authority hereby agrees that the County or such a district created by the County may assume the Obligations issued by the Authority to acquire the Barefoot Bay facilities. Upon assumption of such obligations the County or the district created by the County shall be the owner of the Barefoot Bay facilities. Such right shall be in addition to the right to acquire the Barefoot Bay facilities from the Authority as provided herein.

Director. Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 3.02(D) hereof, the (D) Director for Brevard County may be an elected official thereof.

PROVISIONS RELATING TO LEE COUNTY, FLORIDA. SECTION Section 4.15 shall relate solely to Lee County: The following provisions of this Section 4.15 shall relate solely to Lee County:

SECTION SECTION FOR POLK COUNTY, SECTION THE Following provisions of this Section 4.16 shall relate solely to Polk County: PROVISIONS

Service Area. The Service Area of the Utility System relating to the facilities

(A) Service Area located in Polk County System relating to the facilities sequired from Avatar which are located in Polk County shall be the existing Service Area. sequired from Avain the serve areas outside such Service Area located in Polk County without The Authority may not serve areas outside such Service Area located in Polk County without The Authomy may area outside such initial Service A grant with conditions or the prior written conserve an area outside such initial Service A the prior written conditions or a request to serve an area outside such initial Service Area shall be treated as a deny a request to serve an area outside of County Board of County County Board of County C deny a request to be the Polk County Board of County Commissioners. The Authority legislative decision of the Polk County water and legislative decision of the Polk County water and wastewater system. Solely for shall not compete against the Polk County water and shall not compete system. Solely for purposes of Section 11.14 of the Polk County water and wastewater bond resolution, Polk County action of the conditions provided herein, such franchise shall not Area located in Polk County under the conditions provided herein, such franchise shall not Area located in any respect any franchise heretofore approved by Polk County. This provision may not be modified without the consent of Polk County.

PROVISIONS RELATING TO SARASOTA COUNTY, SECTION 4.17. FLORIDA. The following provisions of this Section 4.17 shall relate solely to Sarasota County:

Service Area. The Service Area of the Utility System relating to the facilities (A) sequired from Avatar which are located in Sarasota County (the "Avatar Utility System") shall be the existing area franchised to Avatar by Sarasota County. The Authority may not serve areas outside such Service Area without the prior written consent of Sarasota County. The decision to grant, grant with conditions or deny a request to serve an area outside the mitial Service Area shall be treated as a legislative decision of the Sarasota County Board of County Commissioners.

Cooperation. The Authority agrees to cooperate with Sarasota County for the **(B)** purpose of interconnecting the Avatar Utility System with the water and wastewater utility system owned and operated by Sarasota County. The Authority and Sarasota County agree that, to the extent practicable, either party may obtain bulk service for treatment of stewater from the other party at a reasonable cost based upon usage to the extent areasonable. The cost of any intercommentation of any intercommentation of any intercommentation of any intercommentation. **astewater** from une of the bulk service is available. The cost of any interconnections by **astewater** capacity for such bulk service is available. The cost of any interconnections by **astewater** capacity and Sarasota County shall be borne by the parties based an account of the service is available. wastewater capacity in a County shall be borne by the parties based an agreed to usage of the Authority and Sarasota County agrees to enter into an agreement with Sarasota County agrees to enter into an agreement with Sarasota County agrees to enter into an agreement with Sarasota County agrees to enter into an agreement with Sarasota County agrees to enter into an agreement with Sarasota County agrees to enter into an agreement with Sarasota County agrees to enter into an agreement with Sarasota County agrees to enter into an agreement with Sarasota County agrees to enter into an agreement with Sarasota County agrees to enter into an agreement with Sarasota County agrees to enter into an agreement with Sarasota County agrees to enter into an agreement with Sarasota County agrees to enter into an agreement with Sarasota County agrees to enter into an agreement with Sarasota County agrees to enter into an agreement with Sarasota County agrees to enter into an agreement with Sarasota County agrees to enter into an agreement with Sarasota County agrees to enter into a county agreement with Sarasota Cou the Authority and Salande Authority agrees to enter into an agreement with Sarasota County the interconnection. The Authority agrees to enter into an agreement with Sarasota County the interconnection in the Avatar Utility System will be made the interconnection. And from the Avatar Utility System will be made available for whereby treated effluent from the Avatar Utility System will be made available for whereby through Sarasota County's Regional Reclaimed Water Discution whereby treated charge for effluent which is transferred to the County's Desired in the state of the county's Desired to the County's Desired in the state of t distribution through the for effluent which is transferred to the County's Regional Reclaimed There shall be no charge for effluent which is transferred to the County's Regional Reclaimed There shall be no charge for effluent which is transferred to the County's Regional Reclaimed There shall be no charge for effluent which is transferred to the County's Regional Reclaimed There shall be no charge for effluent which is transferred to the County's Regional Reclaimed There shall be no charge for effluent which is transferred to the County's Regional Reclaimed There shall be no charge for effluent which is transferred to the County's Regional Reclaimed There shall be no charge for effluent which is transferred to the County's Regional Reclaimed There shall be no charge for effluent which is transferred to the County's Regional Reclaimed There shall be no charge for effluent which is transferred to the County's Regional Reclaimed There shall be no charge for effluent which is transferred to the County's Regional Reclaimed There shall be no charge for effluent which is transferred to the County's Regional Reclaimed There shall be no charge for effluent which is transferred to the County's Regional Reclaimed There shall be no charge for effluent which is transferred to the County's Regional Reclaimed There shall be no charge for effluent which is transferred to the County's Regional Reclaimed There shall be no charge for effluent which is transferred to the County's Regional Reclaimed to the County's R Water Distribution System.

Capital Improvement Plan. Prior to the adoption of its annual budget, the (C) Capital are a five-year capital improvement plan as described in Section 4.10(B) Authority shall prepare a five-year capital improvement plan as described in Section 4.10(B) Authority shall propage to consistent with Sarasota County Utility Master Plans, as amended bereof. Such plan shall be proposed capital improvement plan shall be consistent with Sarasota County Utility Master Plans, as amended bereof. Such plan shall be proposed capital improvement plan shall be submitted to Sarasota from time to time. The proposed capital improvement plan shall be submitted to Sarasota from time to time. (30) days prior to its adoption. Sarasota County shall review and County no less than thirty (30) days prior to its adoption. comment on the appendix and the same. The Authority agrees to cooperate with Sarasota (20) days following its capital improvement plan if necessary to b (20) days ionomials in capital improvement plan, if necessary, to be consistent with Sarasota County in adjusting its capital improvement plan, if necessary, to be consistent with Sarasota County's Utility Master Plans.

Rates, Fees and Charges. Sarasota County shall have the power to approve (D) June, so of the Avatar Utility System, to the extent allowed under Section rates, fees and charges of the Avatar Utility system, to the extent allowed under Section rates, iccs and section section agrees that it shall have no power to approve rates, fees and 404(B) hereof. Sarasota County agrees that it shall have no power to approve rates, fees and therees in the event the Authority establishes such rates, fees and charges in order to comply charges in the Einstein The with the covenants contained in the Financing Documents. Sarasota County shall apply its ordinances and rules and regulations which pertain to water and sewer franchise utilities in determining rates, fees and charges for the Avatar Utility System. Sarasota County recognizes that certain rate making principles, such as contributed property and return on investment concepts, are not applicable to the Authority. Sarasota County and the Authority agree to enter into a separate interlocal agreement with respect to the process to be followed m applying for approval of rates, fees and charges of the Avatar Utility System.

ARTICLE V

MISCELLANEOUS

SECTION Section of any of the constitutional or statutory duties of the State deemed to authorize the delegation of ficers thereof. deemea to authority Members or any officers thereof.

FILING. A copy of this Interlocal Agreement shall be filed for SECTION Section of the Circuit Court in each county wherein an Authority Member is record with the Clerk of the Circuit Court in each county wherein an Authority Member is

located.

IMMUNITY. (A) All of the privileges and immunities from SECTION from laws, ordinances and rules which apply to the activity of hability and exemptions from laws of the Authority Manual and the activity of hability and exemptions or employees of the Authority Members shall apply to the officials, officials, officials, officials, of the Authority when particular and apply to the officials, officials, officials, of the Authority when performing their respective functions officers, agents or employees of this Interlocal Agreement onicers, estimate the provisions of this Interlocal Agreement.

The Authority Members intend to utilize Sections 768.28 and 163.01(9)(c), Florida Statutes, other Florida Statutes and the common law governing sovereign immunity Florida Statutes, autority is the fullest extent possible. Pursuant to Section 163.01(5)(0), Florida Statutes, Authority to the fullest extent possible for the task. to me numers on the held jointly liable for the torts of the officers or employees of the Members may not be held jointly liable for the torts of the officers or employees of the Authority, or any other tort attributable to the Authority, and that the Authority alone shall the hable for any torts attributable to it or for torts of is officers, employees or agents, and then only to the extent of the waiver of sovereign immunity or limitation of liability as specified in Section 768.28, Florida Statutes. The Authority Members intend that the Authority shall have all of the privileges and immunities from liability and exemptions from laws, ordinances, rules and common law which apply to the municipalities and counties of the State. Nothing in this Interlocal Agreement is intended to inure to the benefit of any third-party for the purpose of allowing any claim which would otherwise be barred under the doctrine of sovereign immunity or by operation of law.

SECTION 5.04. LIMITED LIABILITY. No Authority Member shall in any manner be obligated to pay any debts, obligations or liabilities arising as a result of any actions of the Authority, the Directors or any other agents, employees, officers or officials of the Authority, except to the extent otherwise mutually agreed upon, and neither the Authority, the Directors or any other agents, employees, officers or officials of the Authority have any authority or power to otherwise obligate any individual Authority Member in any minner.

SECTION 5.05. AMENDMENTS. This Interlocal Agreement may be amended section of any time by the concurrence of all of the Directors present at a duly called writing at any time by the concurrence of all of the Directors present at a duly called meeting of the Authority and subsequent ratification by the governing body of each Authority meeting of the Authority to inure to the benefit of any private person, (B) permit the diversion Member. However, this Interlocal Agreement may not be amended so as to (A) permit any Member. However, the moneys or other assets of the Authority for any purposes other profits of the Authority to inure to the benefit of any private person, (B) permit the diversion or application of any of the moneys or other assets of the Authority for any purposes other or application of any of the moneys or other assets of the tax-exempt status, if applicable, of than those specified herein, (C) adversely affect the tax-exempt status, if applicable, of than those specified herein, (C) materially, adversely affect the security for any merest on the Obligations, or (D) materially, adversely affect the security for any merest on the Obligations any other provision herein, Sections 4.14 through 4.17 hereof Obligations. Notwithstanding any other provision herein, sections 4.14 through 4.17 hereof Member on whose benefit the provision of any such Section is made without the consent of Member on whose benefit the provision of any such Section is made without the consent of Member on whose benefit the provided such amendment does not adversely affect any other any other Authority Member provided such amendment does not adversely affect any other authority Member or the Utility System located within the affected Authority Member. Authority Member or the Utility System located within the affected Authority Member.

SECTION 5.06. SEVERABILITY. In the event that any provision of this Interlocal Agreement shall, for any reason, be determined invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect by a court of competent jurisdiction, the other provisions of this Interlocal in any respect by a court of competent effect.

SECTION 5.07. CONTROLLING LAW. This Interlocal Agreement shall be construed and governed by Florida law.

SECTION 5.08. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Interlocal Agreement shall become effective on the later of (A) the dated date hereof or (B) the date the last initial Authority Member executes this Interlocal Agreement and the filing requirements of Section 5.02 bereof are satisfied.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Interlocal Agreement has been executed by and on Authority Members by their authorized officers or officials on this are IN WITNESS WHERE OF, this interiocal Agreement has been executed by and on IN WITNESS WHERE OF, this interiocal Agreement has been executed by and on behalf of the Authority Members by their authorized officers or officials on this <u>26th</u> day behalf of the Authority 1999. of January

BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA

By:

Chairman

Approved by the Board on 1-26-99

ATTEST: home lange fund

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Interlocal Agreement has been executed by and on behalf of the Authority Members by their authorized officers or officials on this 26th day behalf of the Authority 1999.

By: 2g Chairma

ATTEST: L Gence, Deputy Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM

COUNTY ATTORNEY OFFICE OF

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Interlocal Agreement has been executed by and on Authority Members by their authorized officers or official IN WITNESS WITTERS Interiocal Agreement has been executed by and on Authority Members by their authorized officers or officials on this 2 day behalf of the Authority 1999. of stuteness, 1999.

POLK COUNTY, FLORIDA

Shearer By Chairman

ATTEST:

Richard M. Weins Clerk By: Ineda A. Wade Deputz Clerk

Reviewed as to form and legal sufficiency mac Lounty Attorney's Office

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Interlocal Agreement has been executed by and on WITNESS WHEREOF, this Interlocal Agreement has been executed by and on the Authority Members by their authorized officers or officials on this //# day behalf of the Authority Members, 1999.

By:

Chairman

ATTEST:

Cher DEPUTY CLERK

FILED FOR RECORD LIST February 23, 1999

The following items have been filed for the record with the Office of Board Records/Clerk of Circuit Court All documents are available for review upon request.		
ास्य	All document	
Cour		DOCUMENT
	DATE	
1	contingent	
2	02/17/99	BIDS Notice of Bid Action for: 9005W - Porter Road Force Main Replacement, PN98S-ENG-4792 Awarded to: Rusty Plumbing, Inc.
		9009W - Beneva Road Street Lighting Phase II, Clark Road - 17 th Street, PN9538.2 & PN9538.3
		Awarded to: Goff Communications, Inc. 9023W - Carlton Preserve Equipment Storage Facility (Re-Bid) Awarded to: Frederick's Construction Company, Inc.
3	01/14/99	<u>MINUTES</u> Minutes of Meeting for the Environmentally Sensitive Lands Advisory Committee, dated December 4, and 18, 1998.
4	02/08/99	<u>STATE AGENCIES</u> Notice of Hearing and Prehearing before the Florida Public Service Commission regarding the adoption of Numeric Conservation Goals to the following:
		<u>Docket No. 971004-EG</u> - Florida Power & Light Company <u>Docket No. 971005-EG</u> - Florida Power Corporation <u>Docket No. 971006-EG</u> - Gulf Power Company <u>Docket No. 971007-EG</u> - Tampa Electric Company.
	02/12/99	Notice of Hearing before the Florida Public Service Commission for <u>Docket</u> <u>No. 980986-TP</u> , to Intermedia Communications, Inc. and GTE Florida Incorporated, regarding a request for arbitration concerning complaint of Intermedia Communications, Inc., against GTE Florida Incorporated for breach of terms of Florida partial interconnection agreement under Sections 251 and 252 of the Telecommunications Act of 1996, and request for relief.
5	02/04/99	<u>CONTRACTS</u> Execution of Contract No. 99-173, an Interlocal Agreement with Brevard County, Lee County, Polk County, and Sarasota County, relating to the

County, Lee County, Polk County, and Sarasota County, relating to the establishment of the Florida Governmental Utility Authority, approved pursuant to the Board's adoption of Resolution No. 99-023 on January 26, 1999.

FLED FOR RECORD LIST February 23, 1999

poge 2

02/04/99

02/10/99

CONTRACTS - Continued

Execution of Contract No. 99-163 with the Florida Department of Community Affairs, the Community Services Block Grant Agreement for FY1999, approved by the Board on November 24, 1998.

MUNICIPALITIES

Pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 163.01(11), Florida Statutes, the Florida Interlocal Cooperative Act of 1969, requiring the filing of Interlocal Agreements with the Clerk of Circuit Court of each county where a party to the agreement is located, noted the following documents:

- Intergovernmental Cooperative Agreement for the City of North Port a. and Sarasota-Manatee Airport Authority, together with an Affidavit regarding authenticity, for providing insurance through Public Risk Management of Florida (PRM), amended and restated through December 11, 1998.
- b. Interlocal Agreement between the Sheriff's Office and the City of North Port dated February 3, 1998, for the Mobile Data Terminal Computer System, including Computer-Aided Dispatch.
- c. Interlocal Agreement between the School Board and Sarasota County Public Hospital Board dated June 4, 1996, for use of the Child Evaluation Center at 4630 17th Street for the Early Intervention A Sublease between the Suncoast Foundation for Program. Handicapped Children and the School Board, and lease with Sarasota County are attached as Exhibits.
- d. Resolution No. 96-2 of the Sarasota-Manatee Airport Authority relating to investment of the Authority's surplus funds, associated with the interlocal Agreement of Investment dated June 27, 1995.
- e. Interlocal Agreement for Implementation of Traffic Mitigation, Phase II, between the City of Sarasota and Sarasota County Public Hospital Board dated August 28, 1991.
- Interlocal Agreement for Implementation of Traffic Mitigation between f. the City of Sarasota and Sarasota County Public Hospital Board dated March 12, 1992, relating to the construction of a child care center on Tuttle Avenue.
- 02/11/99

7

LEGAL

Filing of a Verified Complaint in the matter of Verna Ingham vs. Sarasota County, Florida and the Board of County Commissioners, Defendants, relating to action under State Law challenging the consistency of acts of a local government with its adopted comprehensive plan, pursuant to Section 163.3215, Florida Statutes. This action seeks declaratory relief, injunctive relief, and all such other relief as the Court may deem just and proper.

FLED FOR RECORD LIST February 23, 1999

AUDITS

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 11.45, Florida Statutes, filing of the Audit Summery made of the Sarasota County District School Board for fiscal year ended June 30, 1998

HOUSING

02/16/99

ĝ

02/08/99

P000 3

HUD Housing Vouchers for the following landlords/tenants: Deja Homes, Inc./E. J. Mouhot for Christine A. Brown Tom Bou Apartments/Connie Dryden for Paris D. Odom Mary Ruth Green for Jennifer D. Weeks Douglas Smith for Georgina R. Fuentes David C. Nelson for Theresa M. Jewett North Riverside Park Apts., Inc./Edward Dover for Laletha D. Dupree Orange County Housing/Annie B. Allen for Addie Curry

Lease Addenda

Claretha Major for Manuela L. Ford Princella Singleton-Wiggi for Tawanda K. Hampton Wilma Henry for Cassandra N. Raybon Byrd Realty, Inc./Dawn E. LaBane for Queen E. Pettway

STATE OF FLORIDA) COUNTY OF SARASOTA) I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE FOREGOING IS A TRUE AND CORRECT COPY OF THE ORIGINAL FILES IN THIS OFFICE WITNESS MY HAND AND OFFICIAL 19 '99 SEAL THIS DATE MAREN E. RUSHING, CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT EX-OFFICIO CLERK TO THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS SARASOTA COUNTY FLORIDA

DEPUTY CLERK

STATE OF FLORIDA COUNTY OF POLK

I. Richard M. Weiss, Clerk of the Circuit Court of Polk County, Florida, hereby certify I. Richard M. Weiss, Clerk of the Circuit Court of Polk County, Florida, hereby certify the Interlocal Agreement Relating to Establishment of the Florida Governmental Utility interlocal Agreement, Brevard County, Lee County and Sarasota County approved Automation among Polk County, Brevard County, Lee County and Sarasota County approved Automation among Polk County Board of County Commissioners on February 2, 1999, was filed in this by the Polk County Board of February, 1999. of ce on the 22nd day of February, 1999.

WITNESS my hand and official seal on this 22nd day of February, 1999.



RICHARD M. WEISS Clerk of Circuit Court

P. Malta By

Deputy Clerk

Jenny Jenny Jenny Strategy († 1910) Singer og for det skrifter († 1910) Singer og for det skrifter († 1910)



STATE OF FLORIDA COUNTY OF LEE

I Charlie Green, Clerk of Circuit Court, Lee County, Florida, and ex-Officio Clerk of the Board of County Commissioners, Lee County, Florida, do hereby Certify that the Interlocal Agreement Relating to Establishment of the Florida Governmental Utility Authority approved by the Board of County Commissioners on January 26, 1999, has been received from Nabors, Giblin and Nickerson, Attorneys at Law, this 19th day of February, 1999, and same is filed in the Clerk's Office.

Given under my hand and seal, at Fort Myers, Florida, this 19th day of February, 1999.

> CHARLIE GREEN, Clerk of Circuit Court Lee County, Florida

Bv Deputy Cle

An 2009. Fort Myers, Florida 33902-2469 (941) 335-2283 Fax: (941) 335-2440

I hereby certify that the Interiocal Agreement Relating to Establishment of Florida Givenmental Utility Authority, dated February 1, 1999, was filed with the Brevard County Circuit Given Clerk on the 22 day of February, 1999.

Jandy Crawford, Clerk

I hereby certify that the Interlocal Agreement Relating to Establishment of Florida I hereby certify that the Interlocal Agreement Relating to Establishment of Florida Guernmental Utility Authority, dated February 1, 1999, was filed with the Brevard County Circuit Guern Clerk on the 22 day of February, 1999.

Sandy Crawford, Clerk

EXHIBIT B

2 M 11 49 1 46

가지 말하는 것

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT

FGUA -

FLORIDA GOVERNMENTAL UTILITY AUTHORITY

614 Wymore Road, Winter Park, Florida 32789, Ph: (407) 629-6900, Fax: (407) 629-6963, E-mail: FGUA@FGUA.com

3/2/01

February 20, 2001

VIA FEDERAL EXPRESS

Ms. Ann Myers Nassau County Attorney's Office 191 Nassau Place Yulee, FL 32097

Re: Interlocal Agreement

j

Dear Ann:

Enclosed please find a certified copy of the recently executed Interlocal Agreement between Nassau County and the Florida Governmental Utility Authority, for your records and/or the Nassau County Clerk's office.

Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions or need additional information.

Sincerely,

Taressa Langford

Clerk to the FGUA Board

Enclosure

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT

THIS INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT, dated as of June 1, 2000, entered into between the Florida Governmental Utility Authority (the "Authority") and <u>Nassau County</u> (the "County"), a Member of the Authority, each party constituting a "public agency" under Part I, Chapter 163, Florida Statutes, as evidenced by the signature of their authorized representatives;

WHEREAS, the County desires to contract with the Authority to act on its behalf in the acquisition of certain privately owned utility facilities to be subsequently designated by the County and located within the boundaries of the County; and

WHEREAS, the County is required to meet the comprehensive planning requirements of Chapter 163, Florida Statutes, which mandates that the County coordinate its plans for future growth with available sources of funding and the availability of infrastructure. The provision of water and wastewater utilities is a major factor in such infrastructure coordination. Public ownership of water and wastewater utility facilities is more desirable and more readily allows for Florida local governments to plan their statutory mandate with respect to the utilities element of their comprehensive plan; and

WHEREAS, the public ownership of water and wastewater facilities will ensure that the utility customers are provided the best, most cost effective utility service and will ensure that the future expansion of the water and wastewater facilities will occur in a manner necessary to meet the concurrent demands of development within the County; and

WHEREAS, this Interlocal Agreement is entered into pursuant to section 125.01 and Part I of Chapter 163, Florida Statutes.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing covenants herein, it is mutually agreed and understood by and among the Authority and Nassau County, as follows:

SECTION 1. DEFINITIONS. The following definitions shall govern the interpretation of this Interlocal Agreement:

"Acquisition Counsel" shall mean Nabors, Giblin & Nickerson, P.A. or such other firm as selected by the Authority.

"Acquisition Engineer" shall mean the engineer selected by the Authority to perform Engineering Due Diligence.

"Acquisition Team" shall mean collectively the Acquisition Counsel, the Acquisition Engineer, the Rate Consultant, the Due Diligence Coordinator and the Underwriter.

"Asset Acquisition Agreement" shall mean an agreement between the Authority and the owners of a Designated Utility System setting forth the purchase price and terms and conditions for the acquisition of the utility assets of a Designated Utility System.

"Designated Utility System" shall mean those water and/or wastewater systems designated by the County for an acquisition feasibility determination by the Authority under the scope of this Interlocal Agreement.

"Due Diligence Coordinator" shall mean Governmental Services Group, Inc. or such other firm designated as Manager by the Authority.

"Due Diligence Costs" shall mean the aggregate amounts approved by the governing board of the County and the Authority under Section 5 of this Interlocal Agreement to be paid the Acquisition Engineer, the Rate Consultant, and the Due Diligence Coordinator for the coordination and performance of the Engineering and Financial Due Diligence required to determine the feasibility of the acquisition of a Designated Utility System.

"Engineering Due Diligence" shall mean those customary engineering due diligence surveys and investigation of a Designated Utility System as described in a scope of services approved by the Authority to: (1) identify existing deficiencies and required capital needs for a five-year period; (2) evaluate regulatory compliance and potential environmental liabilities; (3) project a five-year capital improvement program and required levels of renewal and replacement costs; and (4) produce an engineering report to be included in an offering statement for the sale of the Obligations.

"Financial Due Diligence" shall mean those customary financial diligence investigations and analyses of the revenues and costs of a Designated Utility System as described in a scope of services approved by the Authority to: (1) develop a governmental cash flow analysis of system revenues, operations and maintenance costs, renewal and replacement reserves and required capital improvements; (2) project a five-year forecast of net utility rate revenues anticipated under such governmental cash flow analysis; (3) prepare and evaluate the impact of required cash reserve requirements under such governmental cash flow analysis on the net available debt capacity of each Designated Utility System as necessary to finalize an Asset Acquisition Agreement; (4) prepare a present value analysis of the available debt capacity; and (5) prepare a financial feasibility report to be included in the offering statement for the sale of the Obligations.

"Interlocal Agreement" shall mean that Interlocal Agreement, dated as of February 1, 1999, as subsequently amended and restated (the "Agreement") entered into between Brevard County, Florida, Lee County, Florida, Polk County, Florida, and Sarasota County, Florida by which the Authority was created.

"Manager" shall mean the firm or entity under contract with the Authority to provide administrative and financial services.

"Obligations" shall mean a series of bonds or other evidence of indebtedness, including, but not limited to, notes, commercial paper, capital lease or other obligations of the County or the Authority issued to finance the costs of the acquisition of the designated Utility System pursuant to an Asset Acquisition Agreement.

"Rate Consultant" shall mean the rate consultant selected by the Authority to perform Financial Due Diligence.

"Underwriter" shall mean the firms designated by the Authority.

SECTION 2. PURPOSE. The purpose of this Agreement is to authorize the Authority to investigate the feasibility of acquiring a Designated Utility System on behalf of the County in a manner consistent with the acquisition principle that no rate increase for any of the ratepayers of any system will occur as a consequence of the acquisition.

SECTION 3. RESTRICTION ON USE OF AUTHORITY FUNDS. In recognition of the requirement in Section 4.04 of the Interlocal Agreement that all utility systems owned by the Authority are to be maintained as independent enterprise funds, all Due Diligence Costs shall be paid from the proceeds of the Obligations or, in the event the Obligations are not delivered or closed for any reason, directly by the County from available County funds. No funds of the Authority shall be available to fund any undertakings by the Authority or the County or their agents, the Acquisition Team, or any other contracted consultants of the Authority or the County in connection with the performance of the acquisition feasibility determinations contemplated in this Interlocal Agreement.

SECTION 4. ACQUISITION EFFORTS OF THE AUTHORITY. The Authority agrees to (1) appoint the Acquisition Team; (2) direct the Acquisition Team in a

determination of the financial feasibility of an acquisition of a Designated Utility System at a purchase price and subject to terms and conditions acceptable to the County; and (3) finalize an Asset Acquisition Agreement on behalf of the County pursuant to such financial feasibility determination.

SECTION 5. PAYMENT OF FEES OF ACQUISITION TEAM. All fees and expenses of the Acquisition Team shall be approved by the governing boards of both the County and the Authority. The fees and costs of the Acquisition Counsel and Underwriter shall be contingent upon a closing of the Asset Acquisition Agreement completing an acquisition by the Authority or the County of a Designated Utility System. The fees and costs of the Acquisition Engineer, the Rate Consultant and the Due Diligence Consultant shall be paid from the proceeds of the Obligations or, in the event the Obligations are not delivered or closed for any reason, shall be paid directly by the County from available County funds.

SECTION 6. OWNERSHIP OPTIONS OF ACQUIRED DESIGNATED UTILITY SYSTEM. It is recognized between the parties that the owner of a Designated Utility System to be acquired pursuant to an Asset Acquisition Agreement shall be mutually determined by the parties prior to the closing and the transfer of the title of the acquired utility assets and such owner may be the Authority, the County, or another governmental utility authority created subsequent to the execution of this Agreement.

SECTION 7. DISCLOSURE. Governmental Services Group, Inc. ("GSG"), designated in this Interlocal Agreement as Due Diligence Coordinator serves as the Manager of the Authority pursuant to agreement. GSG is affiliated with Nabors, Giblin & Nickerson, P.A. ("NG&N"), designated as Acquisition Counsel under this Interlocal Agreement, and is partially owned by stockholders of NG&N. Both GSG and NG&N also provide services to many governmental authorities throughout Florida, including, but not limited to, other counties and municipalities which are, or could become, members of the Authority.

SECTION 8. NO LIABILITY. Other than payment of the fees and expenses for the Due Diligence Costs approved by the governing boards of both the County and the Authority as provided in Section 5 of this Interlocal Agreement, no action taken pursuant to this Interlocal Agreement shall cause any pecuniary liability to either the Authority or the County or to the representatives of such parties. This Interlocal Agreement is undertaken solely for the purpose of authorizing the Authority to negotiate on behalf of the County in the determination of the financial feasibility of the acquisition of a Designated Utility System.

SECTION 9. TERMINATION. This Interlocal Agreement can be unilaterally terminated at any time by action of the governing body of either the Authority or the County.

SECTION 10. FILING. A copy of this Interlocal Agreement shall be filed for record with the Clerk of the Circuit Court in the County and with the Clerk of the Circuit Court in Leon County Florida.

SECTION 11. CONTROLLING LAW. This Interlocal Agreement is to be governed by the laws of the State of Florida.

SECTION 12. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Interlocal Agreement shall be effective from this date until terminated by the action of the governing board of either the County or the Authority.

NASSAU COUNTY, FLORIDA

Nick-D. Deonas, Chairman Marianne Marshall

ATTEST Oxley. L. Clerk Approved as to Form by/the

Nassau (bont) Attornet

FLORIDA GOVERNMENTAL UTILITY AUTHORITY

Lea Ann Thomas, Chairman

ATTEST:

Robert E. Sheets, Secretary

31100/nassau_interlocal_agree

CERTIFICATION

I CERTIFY THIS TO BE A TRUE AND CORRECT COPY OF THE DOCUMENT ON FILE AT THE FLORIDA GOVERNMENTAL UTILITY AUTHORITY, A PUBLIC BODY CREATED BY INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT PURSUANT TO F.S. 163.01(7)(g).

WITNESS MY HAND AND OFFICIAL SEAL OF THE FLORIDA GOVERNMENTAL UTILITY AUTHORITY

DAYOF

MANAGER/SECRETARY-TREASURER (CERTIFICATION NOT VALID UNLESS ACCOMPANIED BY SEAL

Page 5 of 5